
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
STORMWATER TOWN HALL MEETING


Board of Commissioners
February 13, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Town Hall Meeting on February 13, 2013
at 7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Vanessa Birrell, Director of Stormwater Management
Bryan Keller


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the meeting to order by noting the time was 7:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced President John Harding of the Church of Latter-Day Saints and asked him to offer the
Invocation.  President Harding gave the Invocation.


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


A. Opening Remarks by Chairman Steve Brown


Chairman Brown gave opening remarks concerning the problems associated with the Stormwater initiative.







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting
Minutes
February 13, 2013
Page Number 2


B. Stormwater Presentation by County Administrator Steve Rapson


County Administrator Steve Rapson gave a PowerPoint presentation concerning Fayette County’s Stormwater
Management.  He and Chairman Brown also answered various questions posed to them during this
presentation.  A copy of Mr. Rapson’s PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


C. Citizen Comments on the Stormwater Presentation by Mr. Dennis Chase.


Mr. Dennis Chase gave a PowerPoint presentation concerning the Clean Water Act and stormwater issues
facing Fayette County.  He also answered various questions asked of him during his presentation.  A copy of
Mr. Chase’s PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


D. Public Comments and Input


The following people commented and provided input during the Town Hall Meeting.


1) Richard Maxwell (did not provide an address)
2) Jere L. Key, 277 Nelms Road, Fayetteville
3) Michael Farmer, 150 Crabapple Road, Fayetteville
4) Will Charity, 195 Zelkova Drive, Fayetteville
5) Mary Cordova, 105 North Fayette Drive, Fayetteville
6) Jerry Mayfield, 855 Sandy Creek Road, Fayetteville
7) William Cordon, 571 Weldon Road, Fayetteville
8) Ron Sykos, 400 Harris Road, Fayetteville
9) Mark Loyd, 1115 and 1119 Hwy 54 East, Fayetteville
10) Joe Black, 100 Sandy Lake Circle, Fayetteville
11) Amessa Croft, 321 Brogdon Road, Fayetteville
12) Tim Thoms, 625 McBride Road, Fayetteville
13) Richard Jolly, 556 Ellison Road, Fayetteville
14) Steve Lindsey, 105 Clearbrook Way, Fayetteville
15) Walter Ivey, 506 McBride Road, Fayetteville
16) Johnnie Jones, 110 Lawson Lane, Fayetteville
17) Commissioner Allen McCarty, Fayette County
18) Danny Murdaugh, 150 Huntcliff Court, Fayetteville
19)  Larry Wright, Stanley Road, Fayetteville
20) Laura Maxwell, Price Road, Brooks
21) Denise Ognio, Grooms Circle, Fayetteville
22) Alice Jones, 110 Lawson Lane, Fayetteville
23) Cindy Lou Clancy, 1238 Highway 85 Connector, Brooks
24) Donald Fowler, 1096 Hood Road, Fayetteville
25) Gene Key, 1068 Hood Road, Fayetteville
26) Dave Hannum, Martha’s Cove, Fayetteville
27) Beth Holton, 275 Malone Road and 139 Grant Road, Fayetteville
28) Duane Oswald, 1078 Sandy Creek Road, Fayetteville 







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting
Minutes
February 13, 2013
Page Number 3


29) Mickey Harp, 1692 Highway 92 South, Fayetteville
30) Roger Greuel, 438 Price Road, Brooks
31) Gene Lacey, 162 Ellison Road, Tyrone
32) Mike Gaddy, 683 Sandy Creek Road, Fayetteville
33) Bill Poole, 611 Highway 279, Fayetteville
34) Larry Cordigan (not clear on audio recording; no address given)
35) Junior Monk, 178 Milam Road, Fayetteville
36) Rick Medder, 283 Hillsberry Road (not clear on audio recording)
37) Irma Najera, 439 Westbridge Road, Fayetteville
38) Laurie Klonoski, 295 Merrydale Drive, Fayetteville
39) Frank Gardner, 459 Lester Road, Fayetteville
40) Don, Lucy’s Place, Fayetteville (not clear on audio recording.)
41) Arnold Geiger, 117 Willie Adams Road, Tyrone
42) Gene Adams, 150 Bridger Point Road, Fayetteville
43) Bill Wheeler, Sourwood Trail at Antioch Road, Fayetteville
44) Lester Monk, 178 Milam Road, Fayetteville


The following suggestions were provided by those who spoke:


1) “Do everything in your [Board of Commissioners] power to have Fayette County live within its means.”
2) Instead of a fee, attach “the same dollar amount” to the tax bill where it can be deducted from state


and federal income taxes.
3) Establish a 1% dedicated Stormwater SPLOST for three of five years.
4) Stormwater assessments should not be based on impervious areas, but instead should be based on


how many people live in the County, the size of the problem, and how to fix it.
5) Rethink the approach to stormwater, place a “cap” on the stormwater issue, and get everybody


involved.  
6) Provide information on where exactly the money is going.
7) Provide a better system of collecting the money “from everybody else”.
8) All people who reside in the county, both in incorporated and unincorporated areas, need to pay to


fix the problems since everyone drives on county roads and since this is a county problem.
9) A request for transparency on the status and amount of money collected, and to put the information


on the County’s website.
10) Proposal of a type of sales tax to cover the $15 million expense.  Once the cost is covered the sales


tax could be cancelled.  
11) Utilize prison labor to perform stormwater repairs.
12) Do a better job educating the public on this issue.
13) Private property needs to be paid attention to in the same manner as roads are.
14) Explore issuing a bond and to tax the people in the county to maintain the stormwater system.


Explore financing.  
15) Make the bill a tax and delineate it on the tax bill; even if it means raising the millage rates.







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting
Minutes
February 13, 2013
Page Number 4


Adjournment


After further discussion, the February 13, 2013 Town Hall Meeting adjourned at 10:03 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28th day of February 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 14, 2013


 3:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on February 14, 2013 at 3:00 p.m. in


the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the February 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow offered the Invocation.


Commissioner Ognio led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.


The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of February 2013 as “Heart Health Month”.


Executive Director of Community Public Relations for Piedmont Fayette Hospital Debbie Britt introduced Board


Member Vicki Turner, Director of Cardio Services Mary McFarland, Outreach Coordinator Alice Mitzel, and


Public Safety Director Chief Allen McCullough to the Board.  Commissioner McCarty read the “Heart Health


Month” proclamation into the record.  Ms. McFarland thanked the Board for the proclamation and bragged on


Fayette County and its “premier setup to rescue heart attack victims with Fayette County’s EMS service.”  A


copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 2


2. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette
County’s annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012.


Finance Director Mary Holland and Budget Officer Sergio Acevedo accepted the Government Finance Officers


Association Distinguished Budget Award on behalf of the Fayette County Finance Department.  A copy of the


request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Presentation of the Government Finance Officer’s Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting for both Fayette County’s and Fayette County’s Water System Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.


Finance Director Mary Holland and Budget Officer Sergio Acevedo accepted the Government Finance Officers


Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting on behalf of the Fayette County


Finance Department.  


County Administrator Rapson noted that both awards are “big deals” and that he appreciated the work involved


to make them possible since they are not just given away.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3",


follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Presentation by Fayette County’s auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC. of the results of the
Fiscal Year 2012 annual audit.


Finance Director Mary Holland introduced Audit Partner William Sammons and Audit Manager Greg Chapman,


both with Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC.  Ms. Holland reminded the Board that the County just completed


its annual audit for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2012, and that both gentlemen were present to present their


information.  The information was presented to the Board by both Mr. Sammons and Mr. Chapman. 


Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Sammons and Mr. Chapman if the forecasted amongst themselves for what


the future of Fayette County might be such as an increase in the economy.  Mr. Sammons and Mr. Chapman


said they have a sense that things are improving and that the FDIC indicated that property values were


stabilizing and increasing in some areas.  They added that predicting the future was like a horse race that was


too close to call, but then concluded saying they had not engaged in specific forecasting.  A copy of the request,


identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Dot Ensley: Ms. Dot Ensley spoke about an initiative she was promoting to help families in Adairsville, Georgia who


were recently impacted by tornadoes.  She called on Fayette citizens to provide new supplies to First Baptist Church


in Fayetteville and Peachtree City Christian Church, and to travel to Adairsville on Saturday, February 23, 2013 with


others from Fayette County to distribute the new supplies.


Warren Oddo: Mr. Warren Oddo asked the Board to consider placing its meetings online.  He also suggested that the


Board could allow for informal public comments or online feedback.  County Administrator Rapson replied that he was


holding a draft of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for audio-video capabilities that do exactly what Mr. Oddo was


requesting.  







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 3


Mrs. Tachikawa: Mrs. Tachikawa informed the Board that she has seven dogs in her house, and has been notified that


she will likely have to relocate several of them.  She appealed to the Board to find a way to allow her to her dogs,


perhaps by allowing her to have a kennel license, or have time to foster the dogs until they find good homes.  Chairman


Brown said Attorney Dennis Davenport would review Mrs. Tachikawa’s information to determine what the possibilities,


and he said someone would contact her the next day.


Bob Sitz: Mr. Sitz reminded the Board that he has asked each Commissioner to look at the County’s animal control


statutes in total.  He repeated his request and asked the Board to form a citizens’ advisory group to study the issue.  He


suggested that cases like Mrs. Tachikawa’s and others could be “put on hiatus” until the citizens’ advisory group reached


a decision.  He said he did not agree totally with the Board’s earlier action on the issue since he thought it was


discriminatory against those in the rest of the county who has animals.   


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 5-8.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


5. Approval of staff’s request to accept a proposed amendment to extend an existing Intergovernmental
Agreement between the Town of Tyrone and Fayette County, Georgia for an additional eight (8) months,
and to include a provision for use of a borrow pit at Handley Park.  A copy of the request and
Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


6. Approval of the Water System Director’s recommendation to award Bid #868-Water Distribution Parts,
consisting of six contracts in an aggregate amount of $259,580.00, to six companies that were low
bidders on items used by the Fayette County Water System for water distribution, and authorization for
the Chairman to sign the contracts contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award both the base bid and an additive
alternate bid for the Landscaping at Lake McIntosh to the low bidder, Steadham Grading, Inc., in an
aggregate amount of $78,268.78, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent
upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of the January 22, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes, the January 24, 2013 Board of
Commissioners Meeting Minutes, and the January 29, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes.


NEW BUSINESS:


9. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville’s request to annex a 0.51 acre lot located at 104 Ellis Road in
Land District 5, and to rezone said lot from C-H (Commercial Highway) to C-3 (Highway Commercial).


Community Development Director Pete Frisina said the request involved a remnant parcel that sits behind a


lot across the street from where Zaxby’s restaurant is located.  He said that Jan Trammel used to have an office


next to the lot in consideration.  He said the parcel in question was located at the corner of Walker Parkway and


Ellis Road, that it has nothing on it, and was thought to be have been annexed back in a mass annexation in







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 4


the 1990s.  He continued that this annexation was an effort to clean up an error.  He said he understood that


a restaurant was planned for the parcel of land that Jan Trammel’s office use to be, and part of the parcel under


consideration is needed for parking and stormwater.  He said there was no major change in the land use or


density, and it would not create any problem for the County.  He recommended the Board let Fayetteville know


that there is no problem with the annexation.


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the annexation of the land lot at 104 Ellis Road, Land District 5, and to


rezone said lot from C-H (Commercial Highway) to C-3 (Highway Commercial).  Commissioner Barlow


seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,


identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Consideration of the County Administrator’s recommendation to restructure the current Pension
Committee to include the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human
Resources Director, Finance Director, County Administrator, and an Employee appointed by the County
Administrator.


County Administrator Rapson briefly discussed his request with the Board saying it realigns the membership


of the Pension Committee to agree with the actual plan documents for the retirement plans that are currently


existing.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the County Administrator’s recommendation to restructure the current


Pension Committee to include the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human


Resources Director, Finance Director, County Administrator, and an Employee appointed by the County


Administrator.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed


unanimously.  A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official


part hereof.


11. Consideration of the County Clerk’s recommendation to fill one vacated position on the Fayette County
Ethics Board.


Chairman Brown reminded the Board that the County has two alternates for the Ethics Boards who were


appointed by the last Board of Commissioners.  He stated that Mrs. Larris Marks filled in for a vacancy that was


formerly held by Mayor Dan Langford, and that she was the alternate for the last Ethics Hearing.  He


recommended that the Board of Commissioners keep Mrs. Marks in that position since she did a wonderful job


and is highly qualified.  


Commissioner Oddo agreed with Chairman Brown saying he thought Mrs. Marks did an outstanding job. He


commented on both Mrs. Marks’ and Ms. Coston’s qualifications, but concluded that since Mrs. Marks was


appointed  that it would be wise to keep her in the position.


Commissioner Oddo’s statement was accepted as a motion to appoint Mrs. Marks to the Ethics Board.


Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy


of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 5


12. Consideration of the County Clerk’s request to fill one new position, for a three-year term, on the
McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.


Chairman Brown noted that the County has not issued a press release advertising the position. He thought that


an upcoming agenda should have consideration to automatically advertise these types of posts as they become


available.  County Administrator Rapson replied that he was going to address this issue under Administrator’s


Reports that as a matter of Board policy that staff would automatically begin advertising through press releases


all appointments to county boards and / or appointed positions from now on.  He added that when a position


comes up vacant, he would notify the Board during the Administrators’ reports and the Board could choose to


designate a Commissioner to sit on a selection board.  


Chairman Brown moved to instruct the County Clerk to advertise the post via press release in order to have


some applicants.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed


unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an


official part hereof.


13. Consideration of Commissioner David Barlow’s recommendation to appoint Mrs. Gina Martin and Mr.
Clarence Leathers to the Fayette County Library Board, with four-year terms, and with each appointment
to begin on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Library Director Chris Snell to the Board and commented on his recent work


with Ms. Snell while interviewing applicants for the Library Board.  Mr. Barlow commended  Mrs. Gina Martin


and Mr. Clarence Leathers and their qualifications for the nominations.  Ms. Snell commented on the advertising


process, introduced Library Board Chairwoman Jean White, spoke about the nominees, and spoke about the


future direction of the Library Board.  Mr. Leathers stated he was happy for the opportunity to serve the citizens


of Fayette County.


Commissioner Barlow’s comments were accepted as the motion to appoint Mrs. Gina Martin and Mr. Clarence


Leathers to the Fayette County Library Board.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion


followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these


minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Provision of the January 23, 2013 Ethics Board Minutes and Order to the Board: County Clerk Floyd Jones reported


to the Board that County Ordinance 2010-10 required him to give the minutes and the order from the January 23, 2013


Ethics Board Hearings to the Board of Commissioners.  He then asked the County Marshal to provide each Board


member with both documents in fulfillment of his duty.


Update on the Administration Complex’s Security System: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that staff


was just about to finalize the security system with the doors for the access internally within the building; explaining that


the work should be complete within the next week or so.  Commissioner Brown added that the Administration Complex


was probably the least secure government building in the United States and he commented on the numbers of ways to


get into the building.  He said staff was trying to create some levels of security within the building.  Mr. Rapson replied


that it was fine to be transparent, but there is also a need to be secure.







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 6


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Executive Session: Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had six items of Executive Session: two involving


threatened litigation, three involving pending litigation and one as to review the Executive Session Minutes from January


24, 2013.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Charles Oddo: Commissioner Oddo commented on the Stormwater Town Hall Meeting held on


February 13, 2013.  He said there was a huge turnout of citizens, and while it was a little passionate, he was thrilled to


see everybody come.  He hoped the people understood that the Board was trying to resolve the issue.  He also


commented on two of his long-term friends in the audience, Mr. and Mrs. White. 


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said one of his passions to fix in Fayette County pertains to the


animal ordinances.  He said he knew of two attorneys in Fayette County who have lost closings on homes because the


County was limited to three dogs per address.  He did not think that was a good thing for Fayette County, and he said


the State of Georgia has a very reasonable set of animal control laws that Fayette County should adopt.


Commissioner Randy Ognio: Commissioner Ognio wished everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day and said he appreciated


them coming to the meeting.


Chairman Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown said he needed to appoint someone to review applications for the


McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.  Commissioner McCarty volunteered to review the applications.  Chairman


Brown assigned Commissioner Brown to review the applications.  Chairman Brown congratulated Senator Ronnie


Chance and his wife on the birth of the baby girl, Isabella.  He also spoke of the recent death of Dr. Ferrol Sams, Jr. who


passed away at 90 years of age.  Chairman Brown then read a portion of Dr. Sam’s book entitled The Passing:
Perspectives of Rural America and commented on that passage.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Litigation: Commissioner Barlow moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.


No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 4:00 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 4:42 p.m.


Return to Regular Scheduled Meeting: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit Executive Session and reconvene into


Regular meeting.  Commissioners McCarty and Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion


passed unanimously.


Strike a Sentence from Executive Session Minutes:  Commissioner Barlow moved to instruct the County Clerk that


he no longer has to provide the minutes that the Commissioners need to review.  County Attorney Dennis Davenport


advised the Board on how to revise the motion.  Commissioner Barlow amended the motion for the Board to ask the


County Clerk to strike the sentence where he has provided January 10th and January 22nd minutes into the Executive


Sessions that the Board needs to review.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The


motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
February 14, 2013
Page Number 7


Approval of LOST Agreement:  Chairman Brown moved to approve the LOST Agreement as presented in Executive


Session.  He commented for the record that the County greatly appreciated the cooperation and collaboration that it had


with its municipal partners in Fayette County and that the County looked forward to working with them on other


endeavors.  He thanked them for helping resolve a contentious issue that has been going on for over a year.


Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Appointment of Don Comer to serve as Special Counsel: Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the


recommendation from the County Attorney to appoint Attorney Don Comer to sign on the LOST negotiation between the


cities.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Barlow moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session


Affidavit.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A


copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part


hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the February 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting. Commissioner Ognio


seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the February 14, 2013 Official Meeting at 4:46 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 28th day of February 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


February 28, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of March 7 and March 12, 2013 as “Cancer Prevention Days”.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of Petition 1225-12, Gregory H. Moody, Jr. and Brenda K.
Moody, Owners, and Lynette M. Bowles, Agent, request to rezone 2.49 acres
from A-R: Agricultural-Residential to A-R (LNS): Agricultural-Residential
(Legal Nonconforming Status) to bring said property into zoning compliance.
This property is located at 250 Rising Star Road and also fronts on Old
Greenville Road.


3. Consideration of Petition 1226-13, Pauline D. Boyd, Owner, and James Babb,
Agent, request to rezone property from A-R: Agricultural-Residential to R-70:
Single-Family Residential District to develop one (1) single-family dwelling lot.
This property consists of 2.17 acres located in Land Lot 19 of the 9th District
and fronts on Barsi Point.


4. Consideration of Petition No. 1227-13, D. Michael Travis and Linda H. Travis,
Owners, and Alvin Williams, Agent, request to rezone property from R-40:
Single-Family Residential District to G-B: General Business to develop a
Movie and TV Production Studio.  This property consists of 24.03 acres
located in Land Lot 198 of the 13th District and fronts on S.R. 138.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT:


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-02 imposing a
Wireless Enhanced 911 Charge upon each wireless telecommunications
connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing address is within the
jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at a rate of $1.50 per month per
wireless connection.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-03 imposing a
911 charge for Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) Services subscribed to by
subscribers whose billing addresses are within the jurisdiction of Fayette
County, Georgia, at a rate of $1.50 per month per VOIP subscriber.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200


Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
February 21, 2013
Page Number 2


7. Approval of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-04 supporting State Ethics Reform.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Fayette County
School District, the City of Peachtree City, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks
to establish the methodology for collecting and distributing ad valorem taxes and the new Title Ad Valorem Tax
(TAVT); along with other procedures.


8. Approval of the County Administrator’s request for authorization to sign an agreement between Fayette County,
Georgia and Comcast Cable Communications Management for installation, operation, and maintenance by
Comcast Cable, at Comcast’s sole cost and expense, of cable and other equipment, to provide communications
service to Fayette Senior Services.


9. Approval of the February 13, 2013 Board of Commissioners Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes and the
February 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:





		7. Approval of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-04 supporting State Ethics Reform.






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of the County Administrator's request for authorization to sign an agreement between Fayette County, Georgia and Comcast 


Cable Communications Management for installation, operation, and maintenance by Comcast Cable, at Comcast's sole cost and 


expense, of cable and other equipment, to provide communications service to Fayette Senior Services.


Fayette Senior Services, who has a lease agreement with Fayette County for the building located at 4 Center Drive, is pursuing a change 


in phone, internet, and television providers for its Senior Life Enrichment Center.   


 


Currently, Fayette Senior Services has phone and internet services with CBeyond and has television provided by satellite dish. 


 


Fayette Senior Services has reached contract terms with Comcast Cable, but the building does not have cable drop and the contract 


cannot be implemented until a utility connection has been installed.  Since Fayette County owns the building, an agreement is required 


between Comcast Cable and Fayette County, Georgia. 


 


The County Administrator is requested Board authorization to sign an agreement authorizing Comcast Cable to install cable utilities at the 


Fayette Senior Services building. 


 


Approval of the County Administrator's request for authorization to sign an agreement between Fayette County, Georgia and Comcast 


Cable Communications Management for installation, operation, and maintenance by Comcast Cable, at Comcast's sole cost and 


expense, of cable and other equipment, to provide communications service to Fayette Senior Services.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The current estimated costs of installation are included in the contract proposal with Fayette Senior Services meaning Fayette County 


should not expect costs or an impact to the county budget.


ConsentThursday, February 28, 2013









		Administration- Comcast Cable Agreement Agenda Request File

		Administration- Comcast Cable Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Fayette County School District, the City of 


Peachtree City, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone and the Town of Brooks to establish the methodology for collecting and 


distributing ad valorem taxes and the new Title Ad Valorem Tax (TAVT); along with other procedures.


In 2012, the Georgia General Assembly passed an omnibus tax bill, HB 386 (see Attachment 1; Page 2), which, among other provisions, 


changed the tax collection / distribution procedures for motor vehicles in the State of Georgia. 


 


Beginning March 1, 2013, sales tax will no longer be charged on the sale of new and used motor vehicles.  Instead, sales taxes 


applicable to both dealership and private party purchases will be replaced with a new Title Ad Valorem Tax (TAVT). 


 


Current vehicle owners will continue to pay ad valorem taxes under the previously enacted methodology for assessing motor vehicles. 


 


Tax Commissioner throughout Georgia will be required to collect both ad valorem taxes and the TAVT, and to make distributions to the 


governmental entities authorized to receive such tax distributions in accordance with provisions of HB 386 and other applicable laws of 


the State of Georgia. 


 


This request is to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (see Attachment 2; Page 58) between Fayette County, Georgia and five (5) 


governmental entitles located within Fayette County who are authorized to receive tax distributions.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Fayette County School District, the City of 


Peachtree City, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone and the Town of Brooks to establish the methodology for collecting and 


distributing ad valorem taxes and the new Title Ad Valorem Tax (TAVT); along with other procedures.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, February 28, 2013







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 1 -


House Bill 386 (AS PASSED HOUSE AND SENATE)


By: Representatives Channell of the 116th, O`Neal of the 146th, Jones of the 46th, and Peake


of the 137th


A BILL TO BE ENTITLED


AN ACT


To amend Titles 2, 40, 44, and 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to1


agriculture, motor vehicles, property, and revenue and taxation, respectively, so as to provide2


for the comprehensive revision of taxation of motor vehicles; to change certain provisions3


regarding tag agents; to provide for state and local title ad valorem tax fees as alternative ad4


valorem taxes; to provide for definitions; to provide for continuation of tag, revalidation, and5


registration fees; to provide for distribution of such state and local title ad valorem tax fees;6


to exclude certain vehicles from certain fees; to change certain provisions regarding7


classification of motor vehicles as a separate class of property for ad valorem tax purposes;8


to provide for an exemption from sales and use taxes only with respect to certain sales or9


purchases of certain motor vehicles; to provide for certain reports; to provide for certain10


penalties and sanctions; to provide for a study committee to review and report on such state11


and local title ad valorem tax fees; to change the personal exemption for married taxpayers12


filing an income tax return; to revise certain provisions regarding the exclusion of retirement13


income from taxable net income; to revise provisions relating to tax credits available to14


qualified donors of property for conservation purposes; to provide a maximum tax credit15


amount; to provide for additional requirements for donated conservation easements; to16


provide for certification procedures; to modify transferability of tax credits; to change certain17


provisions relating to the exemptions from sales and use tax for film producers and film18


production companies; to provide for revision of taxation of machinery and energy used in19


manufacturing and agriculture; to provide for the repeal of certain exemptions from state20


sales and use tax; to provide for a new exemption regarding the sale and use of machinery21


or equipment which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible personal22


property and the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy, industrial materials, or23


packaging supplies; to provide for definitions; to provide for procedures, conditions, and24


limitations; to provide for an exemption for sales to, or use by, a qualified agriculture25


producer of agricultural production inputs, energy used in agriculture, and agricultural26


machinery and equipment; to provide for definitions; to provide for procedures, conditions,27


and limitations; to provide for powers, duties, and authority of the Commissioner of28



fjones

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT 1







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 2 -


Agriculture; to provide for a local excise tax on energy used in manufacturing; to provide for29


a new exemption for construction materials used in competitive projects of regional30


significance for a limited period of time; to modify the exemption for jet fuel; to revise the31


definition of dealer in order to expand the limits of nexus with this state for purposes of32


collecting state sales and use tax; to provide for sales tax exemptions for certain items on33


specified dates; to provide for related matters; to provide for effective dates; to provide for34


applicability; to provide that existing prosecutions shall not abate; to provide for severability;35


to repeal conflicting laws; and for other purposes.36


BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:37


PART I38


SECTION 1-1.39


Title 40 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to motor vehicles, is amended40


by revising Code Section 40-2-23, relating to county tax collectors and county tax41


commissioners' designation as tax agents, as follows:42


40-2-23.43


(a)  The tax collectors of the various counties of this state and the tax commissioners of44


those counties in which the duties of the tax collector are performed by a tax commissioner45


shall be designated as tag agents of the commissioner for the purpose of accepting46


applications for the registration of vehicles.  The commissioner is authorized to promulgate47


rules and regulations for the purpose of delegating to such tag agents the custodial48


responsibility for properly receiving, processing, issuing, and storing motor vehicle titles49


or registrations, or both.50


(b)  The state revenue commissioner is authorized to further designate each such tag agent51


as a sales tax agent for the purpose of collecting sales and use tax with respect to the casual52


sale or casual use of a motor vehicle.  For purposes of this Code section, 'casual sale' or53


'casual use' means the sale of a motor vehicle by a person who is not regularly or54


systematically engaged in making retail sales of motor vehicles and the first use,55


consumption, distribution, or storage for use or consumption of such motor vehicle56


purchased through a casual sale.  As personal compensation for services rendered to the57


Department of Revenue with respect to the collection of such sales and use tax, each such58


designated tag agent shall be authorized to retain from such collection a fee of $200.00 per59


month.  In any month in which an insufficient amount of such tax is collected to pay such60


fee, the amount of any such unpaid fee may be deferred until such month as sufficient61


collections are made.  Such compensation shall be in addition to any other compensation62


to which such tax collector or tax commissioner is entitled.63







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 3 -


(c)(b)  The duties and responsibilities of agents of the commissioner designated under this64


Code section shall be a part of the official duties and responsibilities of the county tax65


collectors and tax commissioners.66


SECTION 1-2.67


Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to revenue and taxation, is68


amended by revising Code Section 48-5-441, relating to classification of motor vehicles and69


mobile homes as separate classes of tangible property for ad valorem tax purposes, as70


follows:71


48-5-441.72


(a)(1)  For the purposes of ad valorem taxation, motor vehicles are shall be classified as73


a separate and distinct class of tangible property.  Such class of tangible property shall74


be divided into two distinct and separate subclasses of tangible property with one75


subclass including heavy-duty equipment motor vehicles as defined in Code76


Section 48-5-505 and the other subclass including all other motor vehicles.  The77


procedures prescribed by this article for returning motor vehicles, excluding heavy-duty78


equipment motor vehicles as defined in Code Section 48-5-505, for taxation, determining79


the applicable rates for taxation, and collecting the ad valorem tax imposed on motor80


vehicles shall be exclusive.81


(2)  This subsection shall not apply to motor vehicles subject to Code Section 48-5-441.1.82


(b)  For the purposes of ad valorem taxation, mobile homes are shall be classified as a83


separate and distinct class of tangible property.  The procedures prescribed by this article84


for returning mobile homes for taxation, determining the applicable rates for taxation, and85


collecting the ad valorem tax imposed on mobile homes shall be exclusive.86


(c)(1)  For the purposes of ad valorem taxation, commercial vehicles are shall be87


classified as a separate and distinct class of tangible property.  The procedures prescribed88


by this article for returning commercial vehicles for taxation and for determining the89


valuation of commercial vehicles shall be exclusive and as provided for in Code90


Section 48-5-442.1.  All other procedures prescribed by this article for the taxation of91


motor vehicles shall be applicable to the taxation of commercial vehicles.92


(2)  This subsection shall not apply to motor vehicles subject to Code93


Section 48-5-441.1.94


SECTION 1-3.95


Said title is further amended by adding a new Code section to read as follows:96







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 4 -


48-5-441.1.97


In accordance with Article VII, Section I, Paragraph III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution,98


motor vehicles subject to the provisions of Code Section 48-5B-1 shall be classified as a99


separate and distinct class of tangible property for the purposes of ad valorem taxation.100


SECTION 1-4.101


Said title is further amended by adding a new chapter to read as follows:102


CHAPTER 5B103


48-5B-1.104


(a)  As used in this Code section, the term:105


(1) 'Fair market value of the motor vehicle' means:106


(A)  The average of the current fair market value and the current wholesale value of a107


motor vehicle for a vehicle listed in the current motor vehicle ad valorem assessment108


manual utilized by the state revenue commissioner in determining taxable value of a109


motor vehicle under Code Section 48-5-442;110


(B)  For a used motor vehicle which is not so listed in such current motor vehicle ad111


valorem assessment manual, the value from the bill of sale or the value from a reputable112


used car market guide designated by the commissioner, whichever is greater; or113


(C)  The fair market value determined by the state revenue commissioner from the bill114


of sale of a new motor vehicle for which there is no value under subparagraph (A) of115


this paragraph, less any rebate and before any reduction for the trade-in value of another116


motor vehicle.117


(2)   'Immediate family member' means spouse, parent, child, sibling, grandparent, or118


grandchild.119


(3)  'Loaner vehicle' means a motor vehicle owned by a dealer which is withdrawn120


temporarily from dealer inventory for exclusive use as a courtesy vehicle loaned at no121


charge for a period not to exceed 30 days within a calendar year to any one customer122


whose motor vehicle is being serviced by such dealer.123


(4)  'Rental charge' means the total value received by a rental motor vehicle concern for124


the rental or lease for 31 or fewer consecutive days of a rental motor vehicle, including125


the total cash and nonmonetary consideration for the rental or lease, including, but not126


limited to, charges based on time or mileage and charges for insurance coverage or127


collision damage waiver but excluding all charges for motor fuel taxes or sales and use128


taxes.129







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 5 -


(5)  'Rental motor vehicle' means a motor vehicle designed to carry ten or fewer130


passengers and used primarily for the transportation of persons that is rented or leased131


without a driver.132


(6)  'Rental motor vehicle concern' means a person or legal entity which owns or leases133


five or more rental motor vehicles and which regularly rents or leases such vehicles to the134


public for value.135


(7)  'Trade-in value' means the value of the motor vehicle as stated in the bill of sale for136


a vehicle which has been traded in to the dealer in a transaction involving the purchase137


of another vehicle from the dealer.138


(b)(1)(A)  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, any motor vehicle for which139


a title is issued in this state on or after March 1, 2013, shall be exempt from sales and140


use taxes to the extent provided under paragraph (92) of Code Section 48-8-3 and shall141


not be subject to the ad valorem tax as otherwise required under Chapter 5 of Title 48.142


Any such motor vehicle shall be titled as otherwise required under Title 40 but shall be143


subject to a state title fee and a local title fee which shall be alternative ad valorem taxes144


as authorized by Article VII, Section I, Paragraph III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution.145


(B)(i)  As used in this subparagraph, the term:146


(II)  'Local base amount' means $1 billion.147


(II)  'Local current collection amount' means the total amount of motor vehicle local148


ad valorem tax proceeds collected under this Code section and Chapter 5 of this title149


during the calendar year which immediately precedes the tax year in which the title150


ad valorem tax adjustments are required to be made under this subparagraph.151


(III)  'Local target collection amount' means an amount equal to the local base152


amount added to the product of 2 percent of the local base amount multiplied by the153


number of years since 2012 with a maximum amount of $1.2 billion.154


(IV)  'State base amount' means $535 million.155


(V)  'State current collection amount' means the total amount of motor vehicle state156


ad valorem tax proceeds collected under this Code section and Chapter 5 of this title157


during the calendar year which immediately precedes the tax year in which the state158


and local title ad valorem tax rate is to be reviewed for adjustment under159


division (xiv) of this subparagraph.  Notwithstanding the other provisions of this160


subdivision to the contrary, the term 'state current collection amount' for the 2014161


calendar year for the purposes of the 2015 review under division (xiv) of this162


subparagraph shall be adjusted so that such amount is equal to the amount of motor163


vehicle state ad valorem tax proceeds that would have been collected under this164


Code section in 2014 if the combined state and local title ad valorem tax rate was165


7 percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle less any trade-in value plus166







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 6 -


the total amount of motor vehicle state ad valorem tax proceeds collected under167


Chapter 5 of this title during 2014.168


(VI)  'State target collection amount' means an amount equal to the state base169


amount added to the product of 2 percent of the state base amount multiplied by the170


number of years since 2012.171


(ii)  The combined state and local title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to:172


(I)  For the period commencing March 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013, 6.5173


percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle less any trade-in value;174


(II)  For the 2014 tax year, 6.75 percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle175


less any trade-in value; and176


(III)  Except as provided in division (xiv) of this subparagraph, for the 2015 and177


subsequent tax years, 7 percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle less178


any trade-in value.179


(iii)  For the period commencing March 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013, the180


state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 57 percent of the tax rate specified181


in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate182


equal to 43 percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph.183


(iv)  For the 2014 tax year, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 55184


percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title185


ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 45 percent of the tax rate specified in186


division (ii) of this subparagraph.187


(v)  For the 2015 tax year, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 55188


percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title189


ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 45 percent of the tax rate specified in190


division (ii) of this subparagraph.191


(vi)  For the 2016 tax year, except as otherwise provided in division (xiii) of this192


subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 53.5 percent of193


the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad194


valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 46.5 percent of the tax rate specified in195


division (ii) of this subparagraph.196


(vii)  For the 2017 tax year, except as otherwise provided in divisions (xiii) and (xiv)197


of this subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 44 percent198


of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad199


valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 56 percent of the tax rate specified in division200


(ii) of this subparagraph.201


(viii)  For the 2018 tax year, except as otherwise provided in division (xiii) of this202


subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 40 percent of the203







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 7 -


tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad valorem204


tax shall be at a rate equal to 60 percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this205


subparagraph.206


(ix)  For the 2019 tax year, except as otherwise provided in divisions (xiii) and (xiv)207


of this subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 36 percent208


of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad209


valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 64 percent of the tax rate specified in division210


(ii) of this subparagraph.211


(x)  For the 2020 tax year, except as otherwise provided in division (xiii) of this212


subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 34 percent of the213


tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad valorem214


tax shall be at a rate equal to 66 percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this215


subparagraph.216


(xi)  For the 2021 tax year, except as otherwise provided in division (xiii) of this217


subparagraph, the state title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 30 percent of the218


tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad valorem219


tax shall be at a rate equal to 70 percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this220


subparagraph.221


(xii)  For the 2022 and all subsequent tax years, except as otherwise provided in222


division (xiii) of this subparagraph for tax years 2022, 2023, and 2024 and except as223


otherwise provided in division (xiv) of this subparagraph for tax year 2023, the state224


title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate equal to 28 percent of the tax rate specified in225


division (ii) of this subparagraph, and the local title ad valorem tax shall be at a rate226


equal to 72 percent of the tax rate specified in division (ii) of this subparagraph.227


(xiii)  Beginning in 2016, by not later than January 15 of each tax year through the228


2022 tax year, the state revenue commissioner shall determine the local target229


collection amount and the local current collection amount for the preceding calendar230


year.  If such local current collection amount is equal to or within 1 percent of the231


local target collection amount, then the state title ad valorem tax rate and the local title232


ad valorem tax rate for such tax year shall remain at the rate specified in this233


subparagraph for that year.  If the local current collection amount is more than 1234


percent greater than the local target collection amount, then the local title ad valorem235


tax rate for such tax year shall be reduced automatically by operation of this division236


by such percentage amount as may be necessary so that, if such rate had been in effect237


for the calendar year under review, the local current collection amount would have238


produced an amount equal to the local target collection amount, and the state title ad239


valorem tax rate for such tax year shall be increased by an equal amount to maintain240







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 8 -


the combined state and local title ad valorem tax rate at the rate specified in241


division (ii) of this subparagraph.  If the local current collection amount is more than242


1 percent less than the local target collection amount, then the local title ad valorem243


tax rate for such tax year shall be increased automatically by operation of this division244


by such percentage amount as may be necessary so that, if such rate had been in effect245


for the calendar year under review, the local current collection amount would have246


produced an amount equal to the local target collection amount, and the state title ad247


valorem tax rate for such tax year shall be reduced by an equal amount to maintain the248


combined state and local title ad valorem tax rate at the rate specified in division (ii)249


of this subparagraph.  In the event of an adjustment of such ad valorem tax rates, by250


not later than January 31 of such tax year, the state revenue commissioner shall notify251


the tax commissioner of each county in this state of the adjusted rate amounts.  The252


effective date of such adjusted rate amounts shall be January 1 of such tax year.253


(xiv)  In tax years 2015, 2018, and 2022, by not later than July 1 of each such tax254


year, the state revenue commissioner shall determine the state target collection255


amount and the state current collection amount for the preceding calendar year.  If256


such state current collection amount is greater than, equal to, or within 1 percent of257


the state target collection amount after making the adjustment, if any, required in258


division (xiii) of this subparagraph, then the combined state and local title ad valorem259


tax rate provided in division (ii) of this subparagraph shall remain at the rate specified260


in such division.  If the state current collection amount is more than 1 percent less261


than the state target collection amount after making the adjustment, if any, required262


by division (xiii) of this subparagraph, then the combined state and local title ad263


valorem tax rate provided in division (ii) of this subparagraph shall be increased264


automatically by operation of this division by such percentage amount as may be265


necessary so that, if such rate had been in effect for the calendar year under review,266


the state current collection amount would have produced an amount equal to the state267


target collection amount, and the state title ad valorem tax rate and the local title ad268


valorem tax rate for the tax year in which such increase in the combined state and269


local title ad valorem tax rate shall become effective shall be adjusted from the rates270


specified in this subparagraph or division (xiii) of this subparagraph for such tax year271


such that the proceeds from such increase in the combined state and local title ad272


valorem tax rate shall be allocated in full to the state.  In the event of an adjustment273


of the combined state and local title ad valorem tax rate, by not later than August 31274


of such tax year, the state revenue commissioner shall notify the tax commissioner of275


each county in this state of the adjusted combined state and local title ad valorem tax276


rate for the next calendar year.  The effective date of such adjusted combined state277







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 9 -


and local title ad valorem tax rate shall be January 1 of the next calendar year.278


Notwithstanding the provisions of this division, the combined state and local title ad279


valorem tax rate shall not exceed 9 percent.280


(xv)  The state revenue commissioner shall promulgate such rules and regulations as281


may be necessary and appropriate to implement and administer this Code section,282


including, but not limited to, rules and regulations regarding appropriate public283


notification of any changes in rate amounts and the effective date of such changes and284


rules and regulations regarding appropriate enforcement and compliance procedures285


and methods for the implementation and operation of this Code section.286


(C)  The application for title and the state and local title ad valorem tax fees provided287


for in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph shall be paid to the tag agent in the county in288


which the purchaser registers such motor vehicle and shall be paid at the time the289


purchaser applies for a title and registers such motor vehicle.  A dealer of new or used290


motor vehicles may accept such application for title and state and local title ad valorem291


tax fees on behalf of the purchaser of a new or used motor vehicle for the purpose of292


delivering such title application and state and local title ad valorem tax fees to the293


county tag agent to obtain a tag and title for the purchaser of such motor vehicle.294


(D)  There shall be a penalty imposed on any person who, in the determination of the295


commissioner, falsifies any information in any bill of sale used for purposes of296


determining the fair market value of the motor vehicle.  Such penalty shall not exceed297


$2,500.00 as a state penalty and shall not exceed $2,500.00 as a local penalty as298


determined by the commissioner.  Such determination shall be made within 60 days of299


the commissioner receiving information of a possible violation of this paragraph.300


(E)  A dealer of new or used motor vehicles that accepts an application for title and301


state and local title ad valorem tax fees from a purchaser of a new or used motor vehicle302


and does not transmit such application for title and state and local title ad valorem tax303


fees to the county tag agent within 10 days following the date of purchase shall be304


liable to the county tag agent for an amount equal to 5 percent of the amount of such305


state and local title ad valorem tax fees.  An additional 5 percent penalty shall be306


imposed for each subsequent month the payment is not transmitted.307


(F)  A dealer of new or used motor vehicles that accepts an application for title and state308


and local title ad valorem tax fees from a purchaser of a new or used motor vehicle and309


converts such fees to his or her own use shall be guilty of theft by conversion and, upon310


conviction, shall be punished as provided in Code Section 16-8-12.311


(2)  A person or entity acquiring a salvage title pursuant to subsection (b) of Code312


Section 40-3-36 shall not be subject to the fee specified in paragraph (1) of this313


subsection but shall be subject to a state title ad valorem tax fee in an amount equal to 1314







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 10 -


percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle.  Such state title ad valorem tax fee315


shall be an alternative ad valorem tax as authorized by Article VII, Section I,316


Paragraph III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution.317


(c)(1)  The amount of proceeds collected by tag agents each month as state and local title318


ad valorem tax fees, state salvage title ad valorem tax fees, administrative fees, penalties,319


and interest pursuant to subsection (b) of this Code section shall be allocated and320


disbursed as provided in this subsection.321


(2) For the 2013 tax year and in each subsequent tax year, the amount of such funds shall322


be disbursed within 30 days following the end of each calendar month as follows:323


(A)  State title ad valorem tax fees, state salvage title ad valorem tax fees,324


administrative fees, penalties, and interest shall be remitted to the state revenue325


commissioner who shall deposit such proceeds in the general fund of the state less an326


amount to be retained by the tag agent not to exceed 1 percent of the total amount327


otherwise required to be remitted under this subparagraph to defray the cost of328


administration.  Such retained amount shall be remitted to the collecting county's329


general fund.  Failure by the tag agent to disburse within such 30 day period shall result330


in a forfeiture of such administrative fee plus interest on such amount at the rate331


specified in Code Section 48-2-40; and332


(B)  Local title ad valorem tax fees, administrative fees, penalties, and interest shall be333


designated as local government ad valorem tax funds.  The tag agent shall then334


distribute the proceeds as specified in paragraph (3) of this subsection.335


(3)  The local title ad valorem tax fee proceeds required under this subsection shall be336


distributed as follows:337


(A)  The tag agent of the county shall within 30 days following the end of each calendar338


month allocate and distribute to the county governing authority and to municipal339


governing authorities, the board of education of the county school district, and the340


board of education of any independent school district located in such county an amount341


of those proceeds necessary to offset any reduction in ad valorem tax on motor vehicles342


collected under Chapter 5 of Title 48 in the taxing jurisdiction of each governing343


authority and school district from the amount of ad valorem taxes on motor vehicles344


collected under Chapter 5 of Title 48 in each such governing authority and school345


district during the same calendar month of 2012.  This reduction shall be calculated by346


subtracting the amount of ad valorem tax on motor vehicles collected under Chapter 5347


of Title 48 in each such taxing jurisdiction from the amount of ad valorem tax on motor348


vehicles collected under Chapter 5 of Title 48 in that taxing jurisdiction in the same349


calendar month of 2012.  In the event that the local title ad valorem tax fee proceeds are350


insufficient to fully offset such reduction in ad valorem taxes on motor vehicles, the tag351







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 11 -


agent shall allocate a proportionate amount of the proceeds to each governing authority352


and to the board of education of each such school district, and any remaining shortfall353


shall be paid from the following month's local title ad valorem tax fee proceeds.  In the354


event that a shortfall remains, the tag agent shall continue to first allocate local title ad355


valorem tax fee proceeds to offset such shortfalls until the shortfall has been fully356


repaid; and357


(B)  Of the proceeds remaining following the allocation and distribution under358


subparagraph (A) of this paragraph, the tag agent shall allocate and distribute to the359


county governing authority and to municipal governing authorities, the board of360


education of the county school district, and the board of education of any independent361


school district located in such county the remaining amount of those proceeds in the362


manner provided in this subparagraph.  Such proceeds shall be deposited in the general363


fund of such governing authority or board of education and shall not be subject to any364


use or expenditure requirements provided for under any of the following described local365


sales and use taxes but shall be authorized to be expended in the same manner as366


authorized for the ad valorem tax revenues on motor vehicles under Chapter 5 of367


Title 48 which would otherwise have been collected for such governing authority or368


board of education.  Of such remaining proceeds:369


(i)  An amount equal to one-third of such proceeds shall be distributed to the board370


of education of the county school district and the board of education of each371


independent school district located in such county in the same manner as required for372


any local sales and use tax for educational purposes levied pursuant to Part 2 of373


Article 3 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 currently in effect.  If such tax is not currently in374


effect, such proceeds shall be distributed to such board or boards of education in the375


same manner as if such tax were in effect;376


(ii)(I)  Except as otherwise provided in this division, an amount equal to one-third377


of such proceeds shall be distributed to the governing authority of the county and378


the governing authority of each qualified municipality located in such county in the379


same manner as specified under the distribution certificate for the joint county and380


municipal sales and use tax under Article 2 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 currently in381


effect.382


(II)  If such tax were never in effect, such proceeds shall be distributed to the383


governing authority of the county and the governing authority of each qualified384


municipality located in such county on a pro rata basis according to the ratio of the385


population that each such municipality bears to the population of the entire county.386


(III)  If such tax is currently in effect as well as a local option sales and use tax for387


educational purposes levied pursuant to a local constitutional amendment, an388







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 12 -


amount equal to one-third of such proceeds shall be distributed in the same manner389


as required under subdivision (I) of this division and an amount equal to one-third390


of such proceeds shall be distributed to the board of education of the county school391


district.392


(IV)  If such tax is not currently in effect and a local option sales and use tax for393


educational purposes levied pursuant to a local constitutional amendment is394


currently in effect, such proceeds shall be distributed to the board of education of395


the county school district and the board of education of any independent school396


district in the same manner as required under that local constitutional amendment.397


(V)  If such tax is not currently in effect and a homestead option sales and use tax398


under Article 2A of Chapter 8 of Title 48 is in effect, such proceeds shall be399


distributed to the governing authority of the county, each qualified municipality, and400


each existing municipality in the same proportion as otherwise required under Code401


Section 48-8-104; and402


(iii)(I)  An amount equal to one-third of such proceeds shall be distributed to the403


governing authority of the county and the governing authority of each qualified404


municipality located in such county in the same manner as specified under an405


intergovernmental agreement or as otherwise required under the county special406


purpose local option sales and use tax under Part 1 of Article 3 of Chapter 8 of407


Title 48 currently in effect; provided, however, that this subdivision shall not apply408


if subdivision (III) of division (ii) of this subparagraph is applicable.409


(II)  If such tax were in effect but expired and is not currently in effect, such410


proceeds shall be distributed to the governing authority of the county and the411


governing authority of each qualified municipality located in such county in the412


same manner as if such tax were still in effect according to the intergovernmental413


agreement or as otherwise required under the county special purpose local sales and414


use tax under Part 1 of Article 3 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 for the 12 month period415


commencing at the expiration of such tax.  If such tax is not renewed prior to the416


expiration of such 12 month period, such amount shall be distributed in accordance417


with subdivision (I) of division (ii) of this subparagraph; provided, however, that if418


a tax under Article 2 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 is not in effect, such amount shall be419


distributed in accordance with subdivision (II) of division (ii) of this subparagraph.420


(III)  If such tax is not currently in effect in a county in which a tax is levied for421


purposes of a metropolitan area system of public transportation, as authorized by the422


amendment to the Constitution set out at Ga. L. 1964, p. 1008; the continuation of423


such amendment under Article XI, Section I, Paragraph IV(d) of the Constitution;424


and the laws enacted pursuant to such constitutional amendment, such proceeds425







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 13 -


shall be distributed to the governing body of the authority created by local Act to426


operate such metropolitan area system of public transportation.427


(IV)  If such tax were never in effect, such proceeds shall be distributed in the same428


manner as specified under the distribution certificate for the joint county and429


municipal sales and use tax under Article 2 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 currently in430


effect; provided, however, that if such tax under such article is not in effect, such431


proceeds shall be distributed to the governing authority of the county and the432


governing authority of each qualified municipality located in such county on a pro433


rata basis according to the ratio of the population that each such municipality bears434


to the population of the entire county.435


(d)(1)(A)  Upon the death of an owner of a motor vehicle which has not become subject436


to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section, the immediate family member437


or immediate family members of such owner who receive such motor vehicle pursuant438


to a will or under the rules of inheritance shall, subsequent to the transfer of title of such439


motor vehicle, continue to be subject to ad valorem tax under Chapter 5 of Title 48 and440


shall not be subject to the state and local title ad valorem tax fees provided for in441


paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section unless the immediate family442


member or immediate family members make an affirmative written election to become443


subject to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section.  In the event of such444


election, such transfer shall be subject to the state and local title ad valorem tax fees445


provided for in paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section.446


(B)  Upon the death of an owner of a motor vehicle which has become subject to447


paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section, the immediate family member or448


immediate family members of such owner who receive such motor vehicle pursuant to449


a will or under the rules of inheritance shall be subject to a state title ad valorem tax fee450


in an amount equal to one-quarter of 1 percent of the fair market value of the motor451


vehicle and a local title ad valorem tax fee in an amount equal to one-quarter of 1452


percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle.  Such title ad valorem tax fees453


shall be an alternative ad valorem tax as authorized by Article VII, Section I, Paragraph454


III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution.455


(2)(A)  Upon the transfer from an immediate family member of a motor vehicle which456


has not become subject to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section, the457


immediate family member or immediate family members who receive such motor458


vehicle shall, subsequent to the transfer of title of such motor vehicle, continue to be459


subject to ad valorem tax under Chapter 5 of Title 48 and shall not be subject to the460


state and local title ad valorem tax fees provided for in paragraph (1) of subsection (b)461


of this Code section unless the immediate family member or immediate family462







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 14 -


members make an affirmative written election to become subject to paragraph (1) of463


subsection (b) of this Code section.  In the event of such election, such transfer shall be464


subject to the state and local title ad valorem tax fees provided for in paragraph (1) of465


subsection (b) of this Code section.466


(B)  Upon the transfer from an immediate family member of a motor vehicle which has467


become subject to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section, the immediate468


family member who receives such motor vehicle shall transfer title of such motor469


vehicle to such recipient family member and shall be subject to a state title ad valorem470


tax fee in an amount equal to one-quarter of 1 percent of the fair market value of the471


motor vehicle and a local title ad valorem tax fee in an amount equal to one-quarter of472


1 percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle.  Such title ad valorem tax fees473


shall be an alternative ad valorem tax as authorized by Article VII, Section I, Paragraph474


III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution.475


(C)  Any title transfer under this paragraph shall be accompanied by an affidavit of the476


transferor and transferee that such persons are immediate family members to one477


another.  There shall be a penalty imposed on any person who, in the determination of478


the state revenue commissioner, falsifies any material information in such affidavit.479


Such penalty shall not exceed $2,500.00 as a state penalty and shall not exceed480


$2,500.00 as a local penalty as determined by the state revenue commissioner.  Such481


determination shall be made within 60 days of the state revenue commissioner482


receiving information of a possible violation of this paragraph.483


(3)  Any individual who:484


(A)  Is required by law to register a motor vehicle or motor vehicles in this state which485


were registered in the state in which such person formerly resided; and486


(B)  Is required to file an application for a certificate of title under Code487


Section 40-3-21 or 40-3-32488


shall only be required to pay state and local title ad valorem tax fees in the amount of 50489


percent of the amount which would otherwise be due and payable under this subsection490


at the time of filing the application for a certificate of title, and the remaining 50 percent491


shall be paid within 12 months.492


(4)  The state and local title ad valorem tax fees provided for under this Code section493


shall not apply to corrected titles, replacement titles under Code Section 40-3-31, or titles494


reissued to the same owner pursuant to Code Sections 40-3-50 through 40-3-56.495


(5)  Any motor vehicle subject to state and local title ad valorem tax fees under496


paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section shall continue to be subject to the497


title, license plate, revalidation decal, and registration requirements and applicable fees498


as otherwise provided in Title 40  in the same manner as motor vehicles which are not499







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 15 -


subject to state and local title ad valorem tax fees under paragraph (1) of subsection (b)500


of this Code section.501


(6)  Motor vehicles owned or leased by or to the state or any county, consolidated502


government, municipality, county or independent school district, or other government503


entity in this state shall not be subject to the state and local title ad valorem tax fees504


provided for under paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section; provided,505


however, that such other government entity shall not qualify for the exclusion under this506


paragraph unless it is exempt from ad valorem tax and sales and use tax pursuant to507


general law.508


(7)(A)  Any motor vehicle which is exempt from sales and use tax pursuant to509


paragraph (30) of Code Section 48-8-3 shall be exempt from state and local title ad510


valorem tax fees under this subsection.511


(B)  Any motor vehicle which is exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Code512


Section 48-5-478, 48-5-478.1, 48-5-478.2, or 48-5-478.3 shall be exempt from state and513


local title ad valorem tax fees under paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code514


section.515


(8) There shall be a penalty imposed on the transfer of all or any part of the interest in a516


business entity that includes primarily as an asset of such business entity one or more517


motor vehicles, when, in the determination of the state revenue commissioner, such518


transfer is done to evade the payment of state and local title ad valorem tax fees under519


this subsection.  Such penalty shall not exceed $2,500.00 as a state penalty per motor520


vehicle and shall not exceed $2,500.00 as a local penalty per motor vehicle, as521


determined by the state revenue commissioner, plus the amount of the state and local title522


ad valorem tax fees.  Such determination shall be made within 60 days of the state523


revenue commissioner receiving information that a transfer may be in violation of this524


paragraph.525


(9)  Any owner of any motor vehicle who fails to submit within 30 days of the date such526


owner is required by law to register such vehicle in this state an application for a first527


certificate of title under Code Section 40-3-21 or a certificate of title under Code528


Section 40-3-32 shall be required to pay a penalty in the amount of 10 percent of the state529


title ad valorem tax fees and 10 percent of the local title ad valorem tax fees required530


under this Code section, plus interest at the rate of 1.0 percent per month, unless a531


temporary permit has been issued by the tax commissioner.  The tax commissioner shall532


grant a temporary permit in the event the failure to timely apply for a first certificate of533


title is due to the failure of a lienholder to comply with Code Section 40-3-56, regarding534


release of a security interest or lien, and no penalty or interest shall be assessed.  Such535


penalty and interest shall be in addition to the penalty and fee required under Code536







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 16 -


Section 40-3-21 or 40-3-32, as applicable.  A new or used motor vehicle dealer shall be537


responsible for remitting state and local title ad valorem tax fees in the same manner as538


otherwise required of an owner under this paragraph and shall be subject to the same539


penalties and interest as an owner for noncompliance with the requirements of this540


paragraph.541


(10)  The owner of any motor vehicle purchased in this state for which a title was issued542


in this state on or after January 1, 2012, and prior to March 1, 2013, shall be authorized543


to opt in to the provisions of this subsection at any time prior to January 1, 2014, upon544


compliance with the following requirements:545


(A)(i)  The total amount of state and local title ad valorem tax fees which would be546


due from March 1, 2013, to December 31, 2013, if such vehicle had been titled in547


2013 shall be determined; and548


(ii)  The total amount of state and local sales and use tax and state and local ad549


valorem tax under Chapter 5 of Title 48 which were due and paid in 2012 for that550


motor vehicle and, if applicable, the total amount of such taxes which were due and551


paid for that motor vehicle in 2013 shall be determined; and552


(B)(i)  If the amount derived under division (i) of subparagraph (A) of this paragraph553


is greater than the amount derived under division (ii) subparagraph (A) of this554


paragraph, the owner shall remit the difference to the tag agent.  Such remittance shall555


be deemed local title ad valorem tax fee proceeds; or556


(ii)  If the amount derived under division (i) of subparagraph (A) of this paragraph is557


less than the amount derived under division (ii) of subparagraph (A) of this paragraph,558


no additional amount shall be due and payable by the owner.559


Upon certification by the tag agent of compliance with the requirements of this560


paragraph, such motor vehicle shall not be subject to ad valorem tax as otherwise561


required under Chapter 5 of Title 48 in the same manner as otherwise provided in562


paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section.563


(11)(A)  In the case of rental motor vehicles owned by a rental motor vehicle concern,564


the state title ad valorem tax fee shall be in an amount equal to .75 percent of the fair565


market value of the motor vehicle, and the local title ad valorem tax fee shall be in an566


amount equal to .75 percent of the fair market value of the motor vehicle, but only if567


in the immediately prior calendar year the average amount of sales and use tax568


attributable to the rental charge of each such rental motor vehicle was at least $400.00569


as certified by the state revenue commissioner.570


(B)  Such title ad valorem tax fees shall be an alternative ad valorem tax as authorized571


by Article VII, Section I, Paragraph III(b)(3) of the Georgia Constitution.572







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 17 -


(12)  A loaner vehicle shall not be subject to state and local title ad valorem tax fees573


under paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section for a period of time not to574


exceed six months in a calendar year commencing on the date such loaner vehicle is575


withdrawn temporarily from inventory.  Immediately upon the expiration of such576


six-month period, if the dealer does not return the loaner vehicle to inventory for resale,577


the dealer shall be responsible for remitting state and local title ad valorem tax fees in the578


same manner as otherwise required of an owner under paragraph (9) of this subsection579


and shall be subject to the same penalties and interest as an owner for noncompliance580


with the requirements of paragraph (9) of this subsection.581


(13)  Any motor vehicle which is donated to a nonprofit organization exempt from582


taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for the purpose of being583


transferred to another person shall, when titled in the name of such nonprofit584


organization, not be subject to state and local title ad valorem tax fees under585


paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of this Code section but shall be subject to state and local586


title ad valorem tax fees otherwise applicable to salvage titles under paragraph (2) of587


subsection (b) of this Code section.588


(e)  The fair market value of any motor vehicle subject to this Code section shall be589


appealable in the same manner as otherwise authorized for a motor vehicle subject to ad590


valorem taxation under Code Section 48-5-450.591


(f)  Beginning in 2014, on or before January 31 of each year, the department shall provide592


a report to the chairpersons of the House Committee on Ways and Means and the Senate593


Finance Committee showing the state and local title ad valorem tax fee revenues collected594


pursuant to this chapter and the motor vehicle ad valorem tax proceeds collected pursuant595


to Chapter 5 of this title during the preceding calendar year.596


SECTION 1-5.597


Said title is further amended in Code Section 48-8-3, relating to exemptions from sales and598


use tax, by replacing "; or" with a semicolon at the end of paragraph (90), replacing the599


period at the end of paragraph (91) with "; or", and by adding a new paragraph to read as600


follows:601


(92)  The sale or purchase of any motor vehicle titled in this state on or after March 1,602


2013, pursuant to Code Section 48-5B-1.  This exemption shall not apply to leases or603


rentals of motor vehicles or to those sales and use taxes collected pursuant to604


subsection (d) of Code Section 48-8-241.605







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 18 -


PART II606


SECTION 2-1.607


Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to revenue and taxation, is608


amended by revising subsection (b) of Code Section 48-7-26, relating to personal exemptions609


from income taxes, as follows:610


(b)(1)  An exemption of $5,400.00 $7,400.00 shall be allowed as a deduction in611


computing Georgia taxable income of a taxpayer and spouse, but only if a joint return is612


filed.  If a taxpayer and spouse file separate returns, $3,700.00 shall be allowed to each613


person as a deduction in computing Georgia taxable income.614


(2)  An exemption of $2,700.00 shall be allowed as a deduction in computing Georgia615


taxable income for each taxpayer other than a taxpayer who files a joint return all616


taxpayers other than taxpayers who qualify for the exemption provided for in paragraph617


(1) of this subsection.618


(3)(A)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1994, and prior to January 1,619


1995, an exemption of $2,000.00 for each dependent of a taxpayer shall be allowed as620


a deduction in computing Georgia taxable income of the taxpayer.621


(B)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1995, and prior to January 1,622


1998, an exemption of $2,500.00 for each dependent of a taxpayer shall be allowed as623


a deduction in computing Georgia taxable income of the taxpayer.624


(C)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1998, an exemption of $2,700.00625


for each dependent of a taxpayer shall be allowed as a deduction in computing Georgia626


taxable income of the taxpayer.627


(4)(3)  Commencing with the taxable year beginning January 1, 2003, an exemption of628


$3,000.00 for each dependent of a taxpayer shall be allowed as a deduction in computing629


Georgia taxable income of the taxpayer.630


SECTION 2-2.631


Said title is further amended by revising paragraph (5) of subsection (a) of Code Section632


48-7-27, relating to the computation of taxable net income, as follows:633


(5)(A)  Retirement income otherwise included in Georgia taxable net income shall be634


subject to an exclusion amount as follows:635


(i)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1989, and prior to January 1,636


1990, retirement income not to exceed an exclusion amount of $8,000.00 per year637


received from any source;638


(ii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1990, and prior to January 1,639


1994, retirement income not to exceed an exclusion amount of $10,000.00 per year640


received from any source;641







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 19 -


(iii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1994, and prior to January 1,642


1995, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of643


$11,000.00;644


(iv)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1995, and prior to January 1,645


1999, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of646


$12,000.00;647


(v)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1999, and prior to January 1,648


2000, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of649


$13,000.00;650


(vi)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2000, and prior to January 1,651


2001, retirement income not to exceed an exclusion amount of $13,500.00 per year652


received from any source;653


(vii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2001, and prior to January 1,654


2002, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of655


$14,000.00;656


(viii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2002, and prior to January657


1, 2003, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of658


$14,500.00;659


(ix)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2003, and prior to January 1,660


2006, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of661


$15,000.00;662


(x)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2006, and prior to January 1,663


2007, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of664


$25,000.00;665


(xi)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2007, and prior to January 1,666


2008, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of667


$30,000.00;668


(xii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2008, and prior to January 1,669


2012, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of670


$35,000.00; and671


(xiii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2012, and prior to January672


1, 2013, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of673


$35,000.00 for each taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division674


(i) or (ii) of subparagraph (D) of this paragraph or an amount of $65,000.00 for each675


taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (iii) of subparagraph676


(D) of this paragraph;.677







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 20 -


(xiv)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and prior to January678


1, 2014, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of679


$35,000.00 for each taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division680


(i) or (ii) of subparagraph (D) of this paragraph or an amount of $100,000.00 for each681


taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (iii) of subparagraph682


(D) of this paragraph;683


(xv)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and prior to January 1,684


2015, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of685


$35,000.00 for each taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division686


(i) or (ii) of subparagraph (D) of this paragraph or an amount of $150,000.00 for each687


taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (iii) of subparagraph688


(D) of this paragraph;689


(xvi)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2015, and prior to January690


1, 2016, retirement income from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of691


$35,000.00 for each taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division692


(i) or (ii) of subparagraph (D) of this paragraph or an amount of $200,000.00 for each693


taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (iii) of subparagraph694


(D) of this paragraph; and695


(xvii)  For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2016, retirement income696


from any source not to exceed an exclusion amount of $35,000.00 for each taxpayer697


meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (i) or (ii) of subparagraph (D)698


of this paragraph or an exclusion of all retirement income from any source for each699


taxpayer meeting the eligibility requirement set forth in division (iii) of subparagraph700


(D) of this paragraph.701


(B)  In the case of a married couple filing jointly, each spouse shall if otherwise702


qualified be individually entitled to exclude retirement income received by that spouse703


up to the exclusion amount.704


(C)  The exclusions provided for in this paragraph shall not apply to or affect and shall705


be in addition to those adjustments to net income provided for under any other706


paragraph of this subsection.707


(D)  A taxpayer shall be eligible for the exclusions granted by this paragraph only if the708


taxpayer:709


(i)  Is 62 years of age or older but less than 65 years of age during any part of the710


taxable year; or711


(ii)  Is permanently and totally disabled in that the taxpayer has a medically712


demonstrable disability which is permanent and which renders the taxpayer incapable713


of performing any gainful occupation within the taxpayer's competence; or714







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 21 -


(iii)  Is 65 years of age or older during any part of the year.715


(E)  For the purposes of this paragraph, retirement income shall include but not be716


limited to interest income, dividend income, net income from rental property, capital717


gains income, income from royalties, income from pensions and annuities, and no more718


than $4,000.00 of an individual's earned income.  Earned income in excess of719


$4,000.00, including but not limited to net business income earned by an individual720


from any trade or business carried on by such individual, wages, salaries, tips, and other721


employer compensation, shall not be regarded as retirement income.  The receipt of722


earned income shall not diminish any taxpayer's eligibility for the retirement income723


exclusions allowed by this paragraph except to the extent of the express limitation724


provided in this subparagraph.725


(F)  The commissioner shall by regulation require proof of the eligibility of the taxpayer726


for the exclusions allowed by this paragraph.727


(G)  The commissioner shall by regulation provide that for taxable years beginning on728


or after January 1, 1989, and ending before October 1, 1990, penalty and interest may729


be waived or reduced for any taxpayer whose estimated tax payments and tax730


withholdings are less than 70 percent of such taxpayer's Georgia income tax liability731


if the commissioner determines that such underpayment or deficiency is due to an732


increase in net taxable income attributable directly to amendments to this paragraph or733


paragraph (4) of this subsection enacted at the 1989 special session of the General734


Assembly and not due to willful neglect or fraud;735


PART III736


SECTION 3-1.737


Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to revenue and taxation, is738


amended by revising Code Section 48-7-29.12, relating to tax credits for qualified donation739


of real property, carryover of credit, appraisals, transfer of credit, and penalty, as follows:740


48-7-29.12.741


(a)  As used in this Code section, the term:742


(1)  'Conservation easement' means a nonpossessory interest in real property imposing743


limitations or affirmative obligations, the purposes of which are consistent with at least744


two conservation purposes.745


(2)  'Conservation purpose' means any of the following:746


(A)  Water quality protection for wetlands, rivers, streams, or lakes;747


(B)  Protection of wildlife habitat consistent with state wildlife conservation policies;748


(C)  Protection of outdoor recreation consistent with state outdoor recreation policies;749


(D)  Protection of prime agricultural or forestry lands; and750







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 22 -


(E)  Protection of cultural sites, heritage corridors, or archeological and historic751


resources.752


(3)  'Donated property' means the real property of which a qualified donation is made753


pursuant to this Code section.754


(4)  'Eligible donor' means any person who owns an interest in a qualified donation.755


(5)  'Fair market value' means the value of the donated property established by a property756


appraisal or appraisals meeting the requirements of Section 170 of Title 26 of the United757


States Code, to be submitted in such manner as the commissioner may by regulation758


require as determined pursuant to subsections (c.1) and (c.2) of this Code section.759


(2)(6)  'Qualified donation' means the fee simple conveyance to the state; a county, a760


municipality, or a consolidated government of this state; to the federal government; or a761


bona fide charitable nonprofit organization qualified under the Internal Revenue Code762


and, beginning on January 1, 2014, accredited by the Land Trust Accreditation763


Commission of 100 percent of all right, title, and interest in the entire parcel of donated764


real property, which and the donation is accepted by such state, county, municipality,765


consolidated government, federal government, or bona fide charitable nonprofit766


organization for use in a manner consistent with at least two conservation purposes.  Such767


term shall also include the donation to and acceptance by the state; a county, a768


municipality, or a consolidated government of this state; to the federal government; or a769


bona fide charitable nonprofit organization qualified under the Internal Revenue Code770


and, beginning on January 1, 2014, accredited by the Land Trust Accreditation771


Commission of an interest in real property which qualifies as a conservation easement772


under paragraph (4) of Code Section 12-6A-2.  Any real property which is otherwise773


required to be dedicated pursuant to local government regulations or ordinances or to774


increase building density levels shall not be eligible as a qualified donation under this775


Code section.  Any real property which is used for or associated with the playing of golf776


or is planned to be so used or associated shall not be eligible as a qualified donation under777


this Code section.778


(3)  'Eligible donor' means any person who owns an interest in a qualified donation.779


(4)(7)  'Related person' has the meaning provided by Code Section 48-7-28.3.780


(5)(8)  'Substantial valuation misstatement' means a valuation such that the claimed value781


of any property claimed on any return of tax imposed under this chapter, or on any claim782


for refund of such tax, on the appraisal as submitted to the State Properties Commission783


is 150 percent or more of the amount determined to be the correct amount of such784


valuation pursuant to subsections (c.1) and (c.2) of this Code section.785







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 23 -


(b)(1)  A taxpayer shall be allowed a state income tax credit against the tax imposed by786


Code Section 48-7-20 or Code Section 48-7-21 for each qualified donation of real787


property for conservation purposes under this Code section.788


(2)  Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (3) of this subsection and in subsection789


(d) of this Code section, such credit shall be limited to an amount not to exceed the lesser790


of $500,000.00, 25 percent of the fair market value of the donated real property as fair791


market value is established for the year in which the donation occurred, or 25 percent of792


the difference between the fair market value and the amount paid to the donor if the793


donation is effected by a sale of property for less than fair market value as established for794


the year in which the donation occurred.795


(3)  Except as otherwise provided in subsection (d) of this Code section, in the case of a796


taxpayer whose net income is determined under Code Section 48-7-23, the aggregate total797


credit allowed to all partners in a partnership shall be limited to an amount not to exceed798


the lesser of $1 million $500,000.00, 25 percent of the fair market value of the donated799


real property as fair market value is established for the year in which the donation800


occurred, or 25 percent of the difference between the fair market value and the amount801


paid to the donor if the donation is effected by a sale of property for less than fair market802


value as established for the year in which the donation occurred.803


(c)  No tax credit shall be allowed under this Code section unless the taxpayer files with804


the taxpayer's income tax return a copy of the State Property Commission's determination805


and a copy of a certification issued by the Department of Natural Resources that the806


donated property is suitable for conservation purposes. and meets the following additional807


requirements, where applicable:808


(1)  Subdivision is prohibited for a donated property of less than 500 acres and limited809


to one subdivision for a donated property of 500 acres or more;810


(2)  New construction on donated property of structures, roads, impoundments, ditches,811


dumping, or any other activity that would harm the protected conservation values of such812


donation is prohibited on such property;813


(3)  New construction on donated property within 150 feet of any perennial or814


intermittent stream is prohibited;815


(4)  A buffer of at least 100 feet on each side of any perennial streams on donated816


property which ensures at least 75 percent tree canopy evenly distributed after harvest is817


maintained and a buffer of at least 50 feet on each side of any intermittent streams on818


donated property which ensures at least 75 percent tree canopy evenly distributed after819


harvest is maintained;820







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 24 -


(5)  Timber and agricultural activities undertaken on the donated property are prohibited821


unless in accordance with best management practices published by the State Forestry822


Commission or the Soil and Water Conservation Commission, as the case may be;823


(6)  New construction on donated property causing more than 1 percent of such property's824


total surface area to be covered by impervious surfaces is prohibited;825


(7)  Mining on the property is prohibited; and826


(8)  Planting on the donated property of non-native invasive species listed in Category 1,827


Category 1 Alert, or Category 2 of the 'List of Non-Native Invasive Plants in Georgia'828


developed by the Georgia Exotic Pest Council is prohibited.829


The Board of Natural Resources shall promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to830


implement and administer this subsection, including, but not limited to, policies to guide831


the determination of whether or not donated property is suitable for conservation purposes.832


A final determination by the Department of Natural Resources with respect to the833


suitability of donated property for conservation purposes shall be subject to review and834


appeal under Chapter 13 of Title 50, the 'Georgia Administrative Procedure Act.'835


(c.1)  For each application for certification, the Department of Natural Resources shall836


require submission of an appraisal of the qualified donation by the taxpayer along with a837


nonrefundable $5,000.00 application fee; provided, however, that the nonrefundable838


application fee for property donated to the state shall be 1 percent of the total value of the839


donation, unless such donation is being made to qualify the state for a federal or state grant.840


The appraisal required by this subsection shall be a full narrative appraisal and include:841


(1)  A certification page, as established by the Uniform Standards of Professional842


Appraisal Practice, signed by the appraiser; and843


(2)  An affidavit signed by the appraiser which includes a statement specifying:844


(A)  The value of the unencumbered property, the total value of the qualified donation845


in gross, and an accompanying statement identifying the methods used to determine846


such values;847


(B)  Whether a subdivision analysis was used in the appraisal;848


(C)  Whether the landowner or related persons own any other property, the value of849


which is increased as a result of the donation; and850


(D)  That the appraiser is certified pursuant to Chapter 39A of Title 43.851


Appraisals received by the Department of Natural Resources shall be forwarded to the State852


Properties Commission for review.  The State Properties Commission shall approve the853


appraisal amount submitted or recommend a lower amount based on its review and inform854


the Department of Natural Resources of its determination.  The State Properties855


Commission shall be authorized to promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to856


administer the provisions of this subsection.  Any appraisal deemed to contain a substantial857







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 25 -


valuation misstatement shall be submitted to the Georgia Real Estate Commission for858


further investigation and disciplinary action.  Upon receipt of the State Properties859


Commission's determination, the Department of Natural Resources may proceed with the860


certification process.861


(c.2)  The Board of Natural Resources shall promulgate any rules and regulations necessary862


to implement and administer subsections (c) and (c.1) of this Code section.  A final863


determination by the Department of Natural Resources or the State Properties Commission864


shall be subject to review and appeal under Chapter 13 of Title 50, the 'Georgia865


Administrative Procedure Act.'866


(d)(1)  In no event shall the total amount of any tax credit under this Code section for a867


taxable year exceed the taxpayer's income tax liability.  In no event shall the total amount868


of the tax credit allowed to a taxpayer under subsection (b) of this Code section exceed869


$250,000.00 with respect to tax liability determined under Code Section 48-7-20 or870


$500,000.00 with respect to tax liability determined under Code Section 48-7-21.  Any871


unused tax credit shall be allowed to be carried forward to apply to the taxpayer's872


succeeding ten years' tax liability.  However, the amount in excess of such annual dollar873


limits shall not be eligible for carryover to the taxpayer's succeeding years' tax liability874


nor shall such excess amount be claimed by or reallocated to any other taxpayer.  No such875


tax credit shall be allowed the taxpayer against prior years' tax liability.876


(2)  Only one qualified donation may be made with respect to any real property that was,877


in the year five years prior to donation, within the same tax parcel of record, except that878


a subsequent donation may be made by a person who is not a related person with respect879


to any prior eligible donors of any portion of such tax parcel.880


(d.1)  Any tax credits under this Code section earned by a taxpayer in the taxable years881


beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and previously claimed but not used by such882


taxpayer against such taxpayer's income tax may be transferred or sold in whole or in part883


by such taxpayer to another Georgia taxpayer, subject to the following conditions:884


(1)  The transferor may make only a single transfer or sale of tax credits earned in a885


taxable year; however, the transfer or sale may involve one or more transferees;886


(1)(2)  The transferor shall submit to the department a written notification of any transfer887


or sale of tax credits within 30 days after the transfer or sale of such tax credits.  The888


notification shall include such transferor's tax credit balance prior to transfer, the889


remaining balance after transfer, all tax identification numbers for each transferee, the890


date of transfer, the amount transferred, and any other information required by the891


department;892


(2)(3)  Failure to comply with this subsection shall result in the disallowance of the tax893


credit until the taxpayer is in full compliance;894







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 26 -


(3)(4)  In no event shall the amount of the tax credit under this subsection claimed and895


allowed for a taxable year exceed the transferee's income tax liability.  Any unused credit896


may be carried forward to subsequent taxable years provided that the transfer or sale of897


this tax credit does not extend the time in which such tax credit can be used.  The898


carry-forward period for tax credit that is transferred or sold shall begin on the date on899


which the tax credit was originally earned; and900


(4)(5)  A transferee shall have only such rights to claim and use the tax credit that were901


available to the transferor at the time of the transfer.  To the extent that such transferor902


did not have rights to claim and use the tax credit at the time of the transfer, the903


department shall either disallow the tax credit claimed by the transferee or recapture the904


tax credit from the transferee.  The transferee's recourse is against the transferor.905


(e)(1)  Whenever:906


(A)  Any person prepares an appraisal of the value of property and knows, or907


reasonably should have known, that the appraisal would be used in connection with a908


return or a claim for refund claiming a tax credit under this Code section; and909


(B)  The claimed value of the property on a return or claim for refund which is based910


on such appraisal as submitted to the State Properties Commission results in a911


substantial valuation misstatement with respect to such property for purposes of912


claiming a tax credit under this Code section,913


then such person shall pay a penalty in the amount determined under paragraph (2) of this914


subsection.915


(2)  The amount of the penalty imposed under paragraph (1) of this subsection on any916


person with respect to an appraisal shall be equal to the lesser of:917


(A)  The greater of:918


(i)  Twenty-five percent of the difference between the amount of the tax credit919


claimed on the taxpayer's return or claim for refund and the amount of the tax credit920


to which the taxpayer is actually entitled, to the extent the difference is attributable921


to the misstatement described in subparagraph (e)(1)(B) of this Code section922


paragraph (1) of this subsection; or923


(ii)  One Ten thousand dollars; or924


(B)  One hundred twenty-five percent of the gross income received by the person925


described in subparagraph (e)(1)(A) of this Code section paragraph (1) of this926


subsection for the preparation of the appraisal.927


(3)  No penalty shall be imposed under paragraph (1) of this subsection if the person928


establishes to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the value established in the929


appraisal was more likely than not the proper value.930







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 27 -


(4)  Except as otherwise provided, the penalty provided by this subsection shall be in931


addition to any other penalties provided by law.  The amount of any penalty under this932


subsection shall be assessed within three years after the return or claim for refund with933


respect to which the penalty is assessed was filed, and no proceeding in court without934


assessment for the collection of such penalty shall be begun after the expiration of such935


period.  Any claim for refund of an overpayment of the penalty assessed under this936


subsection shall be filed within three years from the time the penalty was paid.937


(f)  No credit shall be allowed under this Code section with respect to any amount deducted938


from taxable net income by the taxpayer as a charitable contribution.939


(g)  The commissioner shall promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to implement940


and administer this Code section.941


SECTION 3-2.942


Title 44 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to property, is amended by943


adding a new subsection to Code Section 44-10-3, relating to the creation or alteration of944


conservation easements, as follows:945


(f)  No county, municipality, or consolidated government shall hold a conservation946


easement unless the encumbered real property lies at least partly within the jurisdictional947


boundaries of such county, municipality, or consolidated government.948


PART IV949


SECTION 4-1.950


Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to revenue and taxation, is951


amended by revising paragraph (73) of Code Section 48-8-3, relating to exemptions from952


sales and use tax, as follows:953


(73)(A)  The sale or lease of production equipment or production services for use in this954


state by a certified film producer or certified film production company for qualified955


production activities.956


(B)  As used in this paragraph, the term:957


(i)  'Film producer' means any person engaged in the business of organizing and958


supervising qualified production activities.959


(ii)  'Film production company' means any company that employs one or more film960


producers and whose goal is to engage in film production activity.961


(iii)  'Production equipment' means items purchased or leased for use exclusively in962


qualified production activities in Georgia, including, but not limited to, cameras,963


camera supplies, camera accessories, lighting equipment, cables, wires, generators,964


motion picture film and videotape stock, cranes, booms, dollies, and teleprompters.965







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 28 -


(iv)  'Production services' means services purchased for use exclusively in qualified966


production activities in Georgia, including, but not limited to, digital or tape editing,967


film processing, transfers of film to tape or digital format, sound mixing, computer968


graphics services, special effects services, animation services, and script production.969


(v)  'Qualified production activities' means the production or post production of film970


or video projects such as feature films, series, pilots, movies for television,971


commercials, music videos, or sound recordings used in feature films, series, pilots,972


or movies for television, for which the film producer or film production company will973


be compensated and which are intended for nation-wide commercial distribution.974


(C)  Any person making a sale of production equipment or production services to a film975


producer or film production company as specified in this paragraph shall collect the tax976


imposed on the sale by this article unless the purchaser furnishes such seller with a977


certificate issued by the commissioner certifying that the purchaser is entitled to978


purchase the production equipment or production services without paying the tax.  As979


a condition precedent to the issuance of the certificate, film producers and film980


production companies shall submit an application to the commissioner for designation981


as a certified film producer or certified film production company.  Such application982


shall not be valid without prior written approval by the Georgia Film and Videotape983


Office of the Department of Economic Development Reserved;984


PART V985


SECTION 5-1.986


Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to revenue and taxation, is987


amended by revising paragraphs (25), (26), (27), (28), (29), (29.1), (34), (34.3), (35), (37),988


(49), (64), (77), (79), and (90) of Code Section 48-8-3, relating to exemptions from sales and989


use tax, as follows:990


(25)  The sale of seed; fertilizers; insecticides; fungicides; rodenticides; herbicides;991


defoliants; soil fumigants; plant growth regulating chemicals; desiccants, including, but992


not limited to, shavings and sawdust from wood, peanut hulls, fuller's earth, straw, and993


hay; and feed for livestock, fish, or poultry when used either directly in tilling the soil or994


in animal, fish, or poultry husbandry Reserved;995


(26)  The sale to persons engaged primarily in producing farm crops for sale of996


machinery and equipment which is used exclusively for irrigation of farm crops997


including, but not limited to, fruit, vegetable, and nut crops Reserved;998


(27)  The sale of sugar used as food for honeybees kept for the commercial production999


of honey, beeswax, and honeybees when the commissioner's prior approval is obtained1000


Reserved;1001







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 29 -


(28)  The sale of cattle, hogs, sheep, horses, poultry, or bees when sold for breeding1002


purposes Reserved;1003


(29)  The sale of the following types of agricultural machinery:1004


(A)  Machinery and equipment for use on a farm in the production of poultry and eggs1005


for sale;1006


(B)  Machinery and equipment used in the hatching and breeding of poultry and the1007


breeding of livestock;1008


(C)  Machinery and equipment for use on a farm in the production, processing, and1009


storage of fluid milk for sale;1010


(D)  Machinery and equipment for use on a farm in the production of livestock for sale;1011


(E)  Machinery and equipment which is used by a producer of poultry, eggs, fluid milk,1012


or livestock for sale for the purpose of harvesting farm crops to be used on the farm by1013


that producer as feed for poultry or livestock;1014


(F)  Machinery which is used directly in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry when1015


the machinery is incorporated for the first time into a new farm unit engaged in tilling1016


the soil or in animal husbandry in this state;1017


(G)  Machinery which is used directly in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry when1018


the machinery is incorporated as additional machinery for the first time into an existing1019


farm unit already engaged in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry in this state;1020


(H)  Machinery which is used directly in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry when1021


the machinery is bought to replace machinery in an existing farm unit already engaged1022


in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry in this state;1023


(I)  Rubber-tired farm tractors and attachments to the tractors which are sold to persons1024


engaged primarily in producing farm crops for sale and which are used exclusively in1025


tilling, planting, cultivating, and harvesting farm crops, and equipment used exclusively1026


in harvesting farm crops or in processing onion crops which are sold to persons1027


engaged primarily in producing farm crops for sale.  For the purposes of this1028


subparagraph, the term 'farm crops' includes only those crops which are planted and1029


harvested within a 12 month period; and1030


(J)  Pecan sprayers, pecan shakers, and other equipment used in harvesting pecans1031


which is sold to persons engaged in the growing, harvesting, and production of pecans1032


Reserved;1033


(29.1)  The sale or use of any off-road equipment and related attachments which are sold1034


to or used by persons engaged primarily in the growing or harvesting of timber and which1035


are used exclusively in site preparation, planting, cultivating, or harvesting timber.1036


Equipment used in harvesting shall include all off-road equipment and related1037


attachments used in every forestry procedure starting with the severing of a tree from the1038







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 30 -


ground until and including the point at which the tree or its parts in any form has been1039


loaded in the field in or on a truck or other vehicle for transport to the place of use.  Such1040


off-road equipment shall include, but not be limited to, skidders, feller bunchers,1041


debarkers, delimbers, chip harvesters, tub-grinders, woods cutters, chippers of all types,1042


loaders of all types, dozers, and motor graders and the related attachments Reserved;1043


(34)  The sale of the following types of manufacturing machinery:1044


(A)  Machinery or equipment which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of1045


tangible personal property when the machinery or equipment is bought to replace or1046


upgrade machinery or equipment in a manufacturing plant presently existing in this1047


state and machinery or equipment components which are purchased to upgrade1048


machinery or equipment which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible1049


personal property in a manufacturing plant;1050


(B)  Machinery or equipment which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of1051


tangible personal property when the machinery or equipment is used for the first time1052


in a new manufacturing plant located in this state;1053


(C)  Machinery or equipment which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of1054


tangible personal property when the machinery or equipment is used as additional1055


machinery or equipment for the first time in a manufacturing plant presently existing1056


in this state; and1057


(D)  Any person making a sale of machinery or equipment for the purpose specified in1058


subparagraph (B) of this paragraph shall collect the tax imposed on the sale by this1059


article unless the purchaser furnishes him with a certificate issued by the commissioner1060


certifying that the purchaser is entitled to purchase the machinery or equipment without1061


paying the tax.  As a condition precedent to the issuance of the certificate, the1062


commissioner, at the commissioner's discretion, may require a good and valid bond1063


with a surety company authorized to do business in this state as surety or may require1064


legal securities, in an amount fixed by the commissioner, conditioned upon payment by1065


the purchaser of all taxes due under this article in the event it should be determined that1066


the sale fails to meet the requirements of this subparagraph1067


Reserved;1068


(34.3)(A)  The sale or use of repair or replacement parts, machinery clothing or1069


replacement machinery clothing, molds or replacement molds, dies or replacement dies,1070


waxes, and tooling or replacement tooling for machinery which is necessary and1071


integral to the manufacture of tangible personal property in a manufacturing plant1072


presently existing in this state.1073


(B)  The commissioner shall promulgate rules and regulations to implement and1074


administer this paragraph1075







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 31 -


Reserved;1076


(35)(A)  The sale, use, storage, or consumption of:1077


(i)  Industrial materials for future processing, manufacture, or conversion into articles1078


of tangible personal property for resale when the industrial materials become a1079


component part of the finished product;1080


(ii)  Industrial materials other than machinery and machinery repair parts that are1081


coated upon or impregnated into the product at any stage of its processing,1082


manufacture, or conversion; or1083


(iii)  Materials, containers, labels, sacks, or bags used for packaging tangible personal1084


property for shipment or sale.  To qualify for the packaging exemption, the items shall1085


be used solely for packaging and shall not be purchased for reuse;1086


(B)  As used in this paragraph, the term 'industrial materials' does not include natural1087


or artificial gas, oil, gasoline, electricity, solid fuel, ice, or other materials used for heat,1088


light, power, or refrigeration in any phase of the manufacturing, processing, or1089


converting process1090


Reserved;1091


(37)  The sale of machinery and equipment for use in combating air and water pollution1092


and any industrial material bought for further processing in the manufacture of tangible1093


personal property for sale or any part of the industrial material or by-product thereof1094


which becomes a wasteful product contributing to pollution problems and which is used1095


up in a recycling or burning process.  Any person making a sale of machinery and1096


equipment for the purposes specified in this paragraph shall collect a tax imposed on the1097


sale by this article unless the purchaser furnishes the person making the sale with a1098


certificate issued by the commissioner certifying that the purchaser is entitled to purchase1099


the machinery, equipment, or industrial material without paying the tax Reserved;1100


(49)  Sales of liquefied petroleum gas or other fuel used in a structure in which broilers,1101


pullets, or other poultry are raised Reserved;1102


(64)  The sale of electricity or other fuel for the operation of an irrigation system which1103


is used on a farm exclusively for the irrigation of crops Reserved;1104


(77)  Sales of liquefied petroleum gas or other fuel used in a structure in which plants,1105


seedlings, nursery stock, or floral products are raised primarily for the purposes of1106


making sales of such plants, seedlings, nursery stock, or floral products for resale1107


Reserved;1108


(79)  The sale or use of ice for chilling poultry or vegetables in processing for market1109


and for chilling poultry or vegetables in storage rooms, compartments, or delivery trucks1110


Reserved;1111







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 32 -


(90)  The sale of electricity to a manufacturer located in this state used directly in the1112


manufacture of a product if the direct cost of such electricity exceeds 50 percent of the1113


cost of all materials, including electricity, used directly in the product Reserved; or1114


SECTION 5-2.1115


Said title is further amended by adding a new Code section to read as follows:1116


48-8-3.2.1117


(a)  As used in this Code section, the term:1118


(1)  'Consumable supplies' means tangible personal property, other than machinery,1119


equipment, and industrial materials, that is consumed or expended during the1120


manufacture of tangible personal property.  The term includes, but is not limited to, water1121


treatment chemicals for use in, on, or in conjunction with machinery or equipment and1122


items that are readily disposable.  The term excludes packaging supplies and energy.1123


(2)  'Energy' means natural or artificial gas, oil, gasoline, electricity, solid fuel, wood,1124


waste, ice, steam, water, and other materials necessary and integral for heat, light, power,1125


refrigeration, climate control, processing, or any other use in any phase of the1126


manufacture of tangible personal property.  The term excludes energy purchased by a1127


manufacturer that is primarily engaged in producing electricity for resale.1128


(3)  'Equipment' means tangible personal property, other than machinery, industrial1129


materials, and consumable supplies.  The term  includes durable devices and apparatuses1130


that are generally designed for long-term continuous or repetitive use.  Examples of1131


equipment include, but are not limited to, machinery clothing, cones, cores, pallets, hand1132


tools, tooling, molds, dies, waxes, jigs, patterns, conveyors, safety devices, and pollution1133


control devices.  The term includes components and repair or replacement parts.  The1134


term excludes real property.1135


(4)  'Fixtures' means tangible personal property that has been installed or attached to land1136


or to any building thereon and that is intended to remain permanently in its place.  A1137


consideration for whether tangible property is a fixture is whether its removal would1138


cause significant damage to such property or to the real property to which it is attached.1139


Fixtures are classified as real property.  Examples of fixtures include, but are not limited1140


to, plumbing, lighting fixtures, slabs, and foundations.1141


(5)  'Industrial materials' means materials for future processing, manufacture, or1142


conversion into articles of tangible personal property for resale when the industrial1143


materials become a component part of the finished product.  The term also means1144


materials that are coated upon or impregnated into the product at any stage of its1145


processing, manufacture, or conversion, even though such materials do not remain a1146


component part of the finished product for sale.  The term includes raw materials.1147







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 33 -


(6)  'Local sales and use tax' means any sales tax, use tax, or local sales and use tax which1148


is levied and imposed in an area consisting of less than the entire state, however1149


authorized, including, but not limited to, such taxes authorized by or pursuant to1150


constitutional amendment; by or pursuant to Section 25 of an Act approved March 10,1151


1965 (Ga. L. 1965, p. 2243), as amended, the 'Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit1152


Authority Act of 1965'; and by or pursuant to any article of this chapter.1153


(7)  'Machinery'  means an assemblage of parts that transmits force, motion, and energy1154


one to the other in a predetermined manner to accomplish a specific objective.  The term1155


includes a machine and all of its components, including, but not limited to, belts, pulleys,1156


shafts, gauges, gaskets, valves, hoses, pipes, wires, blades, bearings, operational1157


structures attached to the machine, including stairways and catwalks, or other devices that1158


are required to regulate or control the machine, allow access to the machine, or enhance1159


or alter its productivity or functionality.  The term includes repair or replacement parts.1160


The term excludes real property and consumable supplies.1161


(8)  'Machinery clothing' means felts, screen plates, wires, or any other items used to1162


carry, form, or dry work in process through the manufacture of tangible personal1163


property.1164


(9)  'Manufacture of tangible personal property,' used synonymously with the term1165


'manufacturing,' means a manufacturing operation, series of continuous manufacturing1166


operations, or series of integrated manufacturing operations engaged in at a1167


manufacturing plant or among manufacturing plants to change, process, transform, or1168


convert industrial materials by physical or chemical means into articles of tangible1169


personal property for sale, for promotional use, or for further manufacturing that have a1170


different form, configuration, utility, composition, or character.  The term includes, but1171


is not limited to, the storage, preparation, or treatment of industrial materials; assembly1172


of finished units of tangible personal property to form a new unit or units of tangible1173


personal property; movement of industrial materials and work in process from one1174


manufacturing operation to another; temporary storage between two points in a1175


continuous manufacturing operation; random and sample testing that occurs at a1176


manufacturing plant; and a packaging operation that occurs at a manufacturing plant.1177


(10)  'Manufacturer' means a person or business, or a location of a person or business, that1178


is engaged in the manufacture of tangible personal property for sale or further1179


manufacturing.  To be considered a manufacturer, the person or business, or the location1180


of a person or business, must be:1181


(A)  Classified as a manufacturer under the 2007 North American Industrial1182


Classification System Sectors 21, 31, 32, or 33, or North American Industrial1183


Classification System industry code 22111 or specific code 511110; or1184







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 34 -


(B)  Generally regarded as being a manufacturer.1185


Businesses that are primarily engaged in providing personal or professional services or1186


in the operation of retail outlets, generally including, but not limited to, grocery stores,1187


pharmacies, bakeries, or restaurants, are not considered manufacturers.1188


(11)  'Manufacturing plant' means any facility, site, or other area where a manufacturer1189


engages in the manufacture of tangible personal property.1190


(12)  'Packaging operation' means bagging, boxing, crating, canning, containerizing,1191


cutting, measuring, weighing, wrapping, labeling, palletizing, or other similar processes1192


necessary to prepare or package manufactured products in a manner suitable for sale or1193


delivery to customers as finished goods or suitable for the transport of work in process1194


at or among manufacturing plants for further manufacturing, and the movement of such1195


finished goods or work in process to a storage or distribution area at a manufacturing1196


plant.1197


(13)  'Packaging supplies' means materials, including, but not limited to, containers,1198


labels, sacks, boxes, wraps, fillers, cones, cores, pallets, or bags, used in a packaging1199


operation solely for packaging tangible personal property.1200


(14)  'Real property' means land, any buildings thereon, and any fixtures attached thereto.1201


(15)  'Repair or replacement part' means a part for any machinery or equipment that is1202


necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible personal property.  Repair or1203


replacement parts must be used to maintain, repair, restore, install, or upgrade such1204


machinery or equipment that is necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible1205


personal property.  Examples of repair and replacement parts may include, but are not1206


limited to, oils, greases, hydraulic fluids, coolants, lubricants, machinery clothing, molds,1207


dies, waxes, jigs, and other interchangeable tooling.1208


(16)  'Substantial purpose' means the purpose for which an item of tangible personal1209


property is used more than one-third of the time of the total amount of time that the item1210


is in use; alternatively, instead of time, the purpose may be measured in terms of other1211


applicable criteria, including, but not limited to, the number of items produced.1212


(b)  The sale, use, or storage of machinery or equipment which is necessary and integral1213


to the manufacture of tangible personal property and the sale, use, storage, or consumption1214


of industrial materials or packaging supplies shall be exempt from all sales and use1215


taxation.1216


(c)(1)  Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (4) of this subsection, the sale, use,1217


storage, or consumption of energy which is necessary and integral to the manufacture of1218


tangible personal property at a manufacturing plant in this state shall be exempt from all1219


sales and use taxation except for the sales and use tax for educational purposes levied1220


pursuant to Part 2 of Article 3 of this chapter and Article VIII, Section VI, Paragraph IV1221







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 35 -


of the Constitution and except for local sales and use taxes for educational purposes1222


authorized by or pursuant to local constitutional amendment.  This exemption shall be1223


phased in over a four-year period as follows:1224


(A)  For the period commencing January 1, 2013, and concluding at the last moment1225


of December 31, 2013, such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy shall be1226


exempt from an amount equal to 25 percent of the total amount of state sales and use1227


tax that would be collected at the rate of 4 percent on such sale, use, storage, or1228


consumption of energy and shall be exempt from an amount equal to 25 percent of the1229


total amount of each local sales and use tax that would be collected at the rate of 11230


percent on such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy;1231


(B)  For the period commencing January 1, 2014, and concluding at the last moment1232


of December 31, 2014, such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy shall be1233


exempt from an amount equal to 50 percent of the total amount of state sales and use1234


tax that would be collected at the rate of 4 percent on such sale, use, storage, or1235


consumption of energy and shall be exempt from an amount equal to 50 percent of the1236


total amount of each local sales and use tax that would be collected at the rate of 11237


percent on such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy;1238


(C)  For the period commencing January 1, 2015, and concluding at the last moment1239


of December 31, 2015, such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy shall be1240


exempt from an amount equal to 75 percent of the total amount of state sales and use1241


tax that would be collected at the rate of 4 percent on such sale, use, storage, or1242


consumption of energy and shall be exempt from an amount equal to 75 percent of the1243


total amount of each local sales and use tax that would be collected at the rate of 11244


percent on such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy; and1245


(D)  On or after January 1, 2016, such sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy shall1246


be fully exempt from such sales and use taxation.1247


(2)(A)  Any person making a sale of items qualifying for exemption under paragraph1248


(1) of this subsection shall be relieved of the burden of proving such qualification if the1249


person making the sale receives a certificate from the purchaser certifying that the1250


purchase is exempt under this subsection.1251


(B)  Any person who qualifies for the exemption under paragraph (1) of this subsection1252


shall notify and certify to the person making the qualified sale that such exemption is1253


applicable to the sale.1254


(3)  With respect to services which are regularly billed on a monthly basis, the exemption1255


under paragraph (1) of this subsection shall become effective with respect to and the1256


exemption shall apply to services billed on or after the effective date of this Code section.1257







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 36 -


(4)  If a competitive project of regional significance under paragraph (92) of Code1258


Section 48-8-3 is started in a county or municipality, it shall not be subject to the phase-in1259


period contained in subparagraphs (A), (B), and (C) of paragraph (1) of this subsection,1260


but such project shall receive the full exemption provided for in subparagraph (D) of1261


paragraph (1) of this subsection notwithstanding the January 1, 2016, limitation in that1262


subparagraph.1263


(d)  The exemptions under this Code section shall be applied as follows:1264


(1)  The manufacture of tangible personal property commences as industrial materials are1265


received at a manufacturing plant and concludes once the packaging operation is1266


complete and the tangible personal property is ready for sale or shipment, regardless of1267


whether the manufacture of tangible personal property occurs at one or more separate1268


manufacturing plants;1269


(2)  For machinery or equipment that has multiple purposes, some purposes necessary and1270


integral to the manufacture of tangible personal property and some purposes not1271


necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible personal property, the substantial1272


purpose of such machinery or equipment will prevail for purposes of determining the1273


eligibility for exemption.  The commissioner shall consider any reasonable methodology1274


for measuring the substantial purpose of machinery or equipment for which the1275


substantial purpose is not readily identifiable;1276


(3)  For leased machinery or equipment that did not qualify for an exemption at the date1277


of lease inception and subsequently qualifies for the exemption under this Code section,1278


the exemption shall apply to all lease payments made subsequent to such qualification;1279


(4)  Miscellaneous spare parts for which the ultimate use of the spare parts is unknown1280


at the time of purchase are eligible for the exemption as repair or replacement parts.1281


However, use tax must be accrued and remitted if spare parts are withdrawn from the1282


inventory of spare parts and used for any purpose other than to maintain, repair, restore,1283


install, or upgrade machinery or equipment that is necessary and integral to the1284


manufacture of tangible personal property; and1285


(5)  Energy necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible personal property1286


includes energy used to operate machinery or equipment, to create conditions necessary1287


for the manufacture of tangible personal property, or to perform an actual part of the1288


manufacture of tangible personal properly; energy used in administrative or other1289


ancillary activities that are located and performed at the manufacturing plant so long as1290


such activities primarily benefit such manufacture of tangible personal property; energy1291


used in related operations that convey, transport, handle, or store raw materials or1292


finished goods at the manufacturing plant; energy used for heating, cooling, ventilation,1293


illumination, fire safety or prevention, and personal comfort and convenience of the1294







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 37 -


manufacturer's employees at the manufacturing plant; and energy used for any other1295


purpose at a manufacturing plant.1296


(e)  Examples that qualify as necessary and integral to the manufacture of tangible personal1297


property include, but are not limited to:1298


(1)  Machinery or equipment used to convey or transport industrial materials, work in1299


process, consumable supplies, or packaging materials at or among manufacturing plants1300


or to convey and transport finished goods to a distribution or storage point at the1301


manufacturing plant.  Specific examples may include, but are not limited to, forklifts,1302


conveyors, cranes, hoists, and pallet jacks;1303


(2)  Machinery or equipment used to gather, arrange, sort, mix, measure, blend, heat,1304


cool, clean, or otherwise treat, prepare, or store industrial materials for further1305


manufacturing;1306


(3)  Machinery or equipment used to control, regulate, heat, cool, or produce energy for1307


other machinery or equipment that is necessary and integral to the manufacture of1308


tangible personal property.  Specific examples may include, but are not limited to,1309


boilers, chillers, condensers, water towers, dehumidifiers, humidifiers, heat exchangers,1310


generators, transformers, motor control centers, solar panels, air dryers, and air1311


compressors;1312


(4)  Testing and quality control machinery or equipment located at a manufacturing plant1313


used to test the quality of industrial materials, work in process, or finished goods;1314


(5)  Starters, switches, circuit breakers, transformers, wiring, piping, and other electrical1315


components, including associated cable trays, conduit, and insulation, located between1316


a motor control center and exempt machinery or equipment or between separate units of1317


exempt machinery or equipment;1318


(6)  Machinery or equipment used to maintain, clean, or repair exempt machinery or1319


equipment;1320


(7)  Machinery or equipment used to provide safety for the employees working at a1321


manufacturing plant, including, but not limited to, safety machinery and equipment1322


required by federal or state law, gloves, ear plugs, face masks, protective eyewear, hard1323


hats or helmets, or breathing apparatuses, regardless of whether the items would1324


otherwise be considered consumable supplies;1325


(8)  Machinery or equipment used to condition air or water to produce conditions1326


necessary for the manufacture of tangible personal property, including pollution control1327


machinery or equipment and water treatment systems;1328


(9)  Pollution control, sanitizing, sterilizing, or recycling machinery or equipment;1329


(10)  Industrial materials bought for further processing in the manufacture of tangible1330


personal property for sale or further processing or any part of the industrial material or1331







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 38 -


by-product thereof which becomes a wasteful product contributing to pollution problems1332


and which is used up in a recycling or burning process;1333


(11)  Machinery or equipment used in quarrying and mining activities, including blasting,1334


extraction, and crushing; and1335


(12)  Energy used at a manufacturing plant.1336


SECTION 5-3.1337


Said title is further amended by adding a new Code section to read as follows:1338


48-8-3.3.1339


(a)  As used in this Code section, the term:1340


(1)(A)  'Agricultural machinery and equipment' means machinery and equipment used1341


in the production of agricultural products, including, but not limited to, machinery and1342


equipment used in the production of poultry and eggs for sale, including, but not limited1343


to, equipment used in the cleaning or maintenance of poultry houses and the1344


surrounding premises; in hatching and breeding of poultry and the breeding of livestock1345


and equine; in production, processing, and storage of fluid milk for sale; in drying,1346


ripening, cooking, further processing, or storage of agricultural products, including, but1347


not limited to, orchard crops; in production of livestock and equine for sale; by a1348


producer of poultry, eggs, fluid milk, equine, or livestock for sale; for the purpose of1349


harvesting agricultural products to be used on the farm by that producer as feed for1350


poultry, equine, or livestock; directly in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry when the1351


machinery is incorporated for the first time or as additional machinery for the first time1352


into a new or an existing farm unit engaged in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry in1353


this state; directly in tilling the soil or in animal husbandry when the machinery is1354


bought to replace machinery in an existing farm unit already engaged in tilling the soil1355


or in animal husbandry in this state; machinery and equipment used exclusively for1356


irrigation of agricultural products, including, but not limited to, fruit, vegetable, and nut1357


crops; and machinery and equipment used to cool agricultural products in storage1358


facilities.1359


(B)  'Agricultural machinery and equipment' also means farm tractors and attachments1360


to the tractors; off-road vehicles used primarily in the production of nursery and1361


horticultural crops; self-propelled fertilizer or chemical application equipment sold to1362


persons engaged primarily in producing agricultural products for sale and which are1363


used exclusively in tilling, planting, cultivating, and harvesting agricultural products,1364


including, but not limited to, growing, harvesting, or processing onions, peaches,1365


blackberries, blueberries, or other orchard crops, nursery, and other horticultural crops;1366


devices and containers used in the transport and shipment of agricultural products;1367







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 39 -


aircraft exclusively used for spraying agricultural crops; pecan sprayers, pecan shakers,1368


and other equipment used in harvesting pecans sold to persons engaged in the growing,1369


harvesting, and production of pecans; and off-road equipment and related attachments1370


which are sold to or used by persons engaged primarily in the growing or harvesting of1371


timber and which are used exclusively in site preparation, planting, cultivating, or1372


harvesting timber.  Equipment used in harvesting shall include all off-road equipment1373


and related attachments used in every forestry procedure starting with the severing of1374


a tree from the ground until and including the point at which the tree or its parts in any1375


form has been loaded in the field in or on a truck or other vehicle for transport to the1376


place of use.  Such off-road equipment shall include, but not be limited to, skidders,1377


feller bunchers, debarkers, delimbers, chip harvesters, tub-grinders, woods cutters,1378


chippers of all types, loaders of all types, dozers, mid-motor graders, and the related1379


attachments; grain bins and attachments to grain bins; any repair, replacement, or1380


component parts installed on agricultural machinery and equipment; trailers used to1381


transport agricultural products; all-terrain vehicles and multipassenger rough-terrain1382


vehicles; and any other off-road vehicles used directly and principally in the production1383


of agricultural or horticultural products.1384


(2)  'Agricultural operations' or 'agricultural products' means raising, growing, harvesting,1385


or storing of crops; feeding, breeding, or managing livestock, equine, or poultry;1386


producing or storing feed for use in the production of livestock, including, but not limited1387


to, cattle, calves, swine, hogs, goats, sheep, equine, and rabbits, or for use in the1388


production of poultry, including, but not limited to, chickens, hens, ratites, and turkeys;1389


producing plants, trees, Christmas trees, fowl, equine, or animals; or the production of1390


aquacultural, horticultural, viticultural, silvicultural, grass sod, dairy, livestock, poultry,1391


egg, and apiarian products.  Agricultural products are considered grown in this state if1392


such products are grown, produced, or processed in this state, whether or not such1393


products are composed of constituent products grown or produced outside this state.1394


(3)  'Agricultural production inputs' means seed; seedlings; plants grown from seed,1395


cuttings, or liners; fertilizers; insecticides; livestock and poultry feeds, drugs, and1396


instruments used for the administration of such drugs; fencing products and materials1397


used to produce agricultural products; fungicides; rodenticides; herbicides; defoliants;1398


soil fumigants; plant growth regulating chemicals; desiccants, including, but not limited1399


to, shavings and sawdust from wood, peanut hulls, fuller's earth, straw, and hay; feed for1400


animals, including, but not limited to, livestock, fish, equine, hogs, or poultry; sugar used1401


as food for honeybees kept for the commercial production of honey, beeswax, and1402


honeybees; cattle, hogs, sheep, equine, poultry, or bees when sold for breeding purposes;1403


ice or other refrigerants, including, but not limited to, nitrogen, carbon dioxide, ammonia,1404







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 40 -


and propylene glycol used in the processing for market or the chilling of agricultural1405


products in storage facilities, rooms, compartments, or delivery trucks; materials,1406


containers, crates, boxes, labels, sacks, bags, or bottles used for packaging agricultural1407


products when the product is either sold in the containers, sacks, bags, or bottles directly1408


to the consumer or when such use is incidental to the sale of the product for resale; and1409


containers, plastic, canvas, and other fabrics used in the care and raising of agricultural1410


products or canvas used in covering feed bins, silos, greenhouses, and other similar1411


storage structures.1412


(4)  'Energy used in agriculture' means fuels used for agricultural purposes, including, but1413


not limited to, off-road diesel, propane, butane, electricity, natural gas, wood, wood1414


products, or wood by-products; liquefied petroleum gas or other fuel used in structures1415


in which broilers, pullets, or other poultry are raised, in which swine are raised, in which1416


dairy animals are raised or milked or where dairy products are stored on a farm, in which1417


agricultural products are stored, and in which plants, seedlings, nursery stock, or floral1418


products are raised primarily for the purposes of making sales of such plants, seedlings,1419


nursery stock, or floral products for resale; electricity or other fuel for the operation of1420


an irrigation system which is used on a farm exclusively for the irrigation of agricultural1421


products; and electricity or other fuel used in the drying, cooking, or further processing1422


of raw agricultural products, including, but not limited to, food processing of raw1423


agricultural products.1424


(5)  'Qualified agriculture producer' includes producers of agricultural products who meet1425


one of the following criteria:1426


(A)  The person or entity is the owner or lessee of agricultural land or other real1427


property from which $2,500.00 or more of agricultural products were produced and1428


sold during the year, including payments from government sources;1429


(B)  The person or entity is in the business of providing for-hire custom agricultural1430


services, including, but not limited to, plowing, planting, harvesting, growing, animal1431


husbandry or the maintenance of livestock, raising or substantially modifying1432


agricultural products, or the maintenance of agricultural land from which $2,500.00 or1433


more of such services were provided during the year;1434


(C)  The person or entity is the owner of land that qualifies for taxation under the1435


qualifications of bona fide conservation use property as defined in Code Section1436


48-5-7.4 or qualifies for taxation under the provisions of the Georgia Forest Land1437


Protection Act as defined in Code Section 48-5-7.7;1438


(D)  The person or entity is in the business of producing long-term agricultural products1439


from which there might not be annual income, including, but not limited to, timber,1440


pulpwood, orchard crops, pecans, and horticultural or other multiyear agricultural or1441







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 41 -


farm products.  Applicants must demonstrate that sufficient volumes of such long-term1442


agricultural products will be produced which have the capacity to generate at least1443


$2,500.00 in sales annually in the future; or1444


(E)  The person or entity must establish, to the satisfaction of the Commissioner of1445


Agriculture, that the person or entity is actively engaged in the production of1446


agricultural products and has or will have created sufficient volumes to generate at least1447


$2,500.00 in sales annually.1448


(b)  The sales and use taxes levied or imposed by this article shall not apply to sales to, or1449


use by, a qualified agriculture producer of agricultural production inputs, energy used in1450


agriculture, and agricultural machinery and equipment.1451


(c)  The Commissioner of Agriculture, at his or her discretion, may use one or both of the1452


following criteria as a tool to determine eligibility under this Code section:1453


(1)  Business activity on IRS schedule F (Profit or Loss from Farming); or1454


(2)  Farm rental activity on IRS form 4835 (Farm Rental Income and Expenses) or1455


schedule E (Supplemental Income and Loss).1456


(d)  Qualified agricultural producers that meet the criteria provided for in paragraph (5) of1457


subsection (a) of this Code section must apply to the Commissioner of Agriculture to1458


request an agricultural sales and use tax exemption certificate that contains an exemption1459


number.  To facilitate the use of the exemption certificate, a wallet-sized card containing1460


that same information shall also be issued by the Commissioner of Agriculture.1461


(e)  The Commissioner of Agriculture is authorized to promulgate rules and regulations1462


governing the issuance of agricultural exemption certificates and the administration of this1463


Code section.  The Commissioner of Agriculture is authorized to establish an oversight1464


board and direct staff and is authorized to charge annual fees of not less than $15.00 nor1465


more than $25.00 per year in accordance with Code Section 2-1-5, but in no event shall the1466


total amount of the proceeds from such fees exceed the cost of administering this Code1467


section.1468


SECTION 5-4.1469


Said title is further amended by adding a new article at the end of Chapter 13, relating to1470


specific, business, and occupation taxes, to read as follows:1471


ARTICLE 61472


48-13-110.1473


As used in this article, the term:1474


(1)  'Dealer' has the same meaning as in Code Section 48-8-2.1475







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 42 -


(2)  'Energy' has the same meaning as in Code Section 48-8-3.2.1476


(3)  'Local sales and use tax' means any of the following:1477


(A)  The county special purpose local option sales and use tax under Part 1 of Article1478


3 of Chapter 8 of this title;1479


(B)  The joint county and municipal sales and use tax under Article 2 of Chapter 8 of1480


this title;1481


(C)  The homestead option sales and use tax under Article 2A of Chapter 8 of this title;1482


(D)  The tax levied for purposes of a metropolitan area system of public transportation,1483


as authorized by the amendment to the Constitution set out at Ga. L. 1964, p. 1008; the1484


continuation of such amendment under Article XI, Section I, Paragraph IV(d) of the1485


Constitution; and the laws enacted pursuant to such constitutional amendment; or1486


(E)  The water and sewer projects and costs tax pursuant to Article 4 of Chapter 8 of1487


this title.1488


(4)  'Purchaser' means any person who purchases energy and who would have been liable1489


for sales and use tax on such energy but for the exemption provided for in Code Section1490


48-8-3.2.1491


48-13-111.1492


Pursuant to the authority granted by Article IX, Section II, Paragraph VI of the1493


Constitution, there are created within this state 159 special districts.  One such district shall1494


exist within the geographical boundaries of each county, and the territory of each district1495


shall include all of the territory within the county except territory located within the1496


boundaries of any municipality that imposes an excise tax on energy under this article.1497


48-13-112.1498


(a)(1)  Within the territorial limits of the special district located within the county, each1499


county in this state may levy and collect an excise tax upon the sale or use of energy1500


when such sale or use would have constituted a taxable event for purposes of sales and1501


use tax under Article 1 of Chapter 8 of this title but for the exemption in Code Section1502


48-8-3.2.1503


(2)  The governing authority of each municipality in this state may, subject to the1504


conditions of Code Section 48-13-115, levy and collect an excise tax upon the sale or use1505


of energy when such sale or use would have constituted a taxable event for purposes of1506


sales and use tax under Article 1 of Chapter 8 of this title but for the exemption in Code1507


Section 48-8-3.2.1508


(3)  The excise tax levied pursuant to this article shall be phased in over a four-year1509


period as follows:1510







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 43 -


(A)  For the period commencing January 1, 2013, and concluding at the last moment1511


of December 31, 2013, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 25 percent of the1512


total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would be1513


collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the exemption in1514


Code Section 48-8-3.2;1515


(B)  For the period commencing January 1, 2014, and concluding at the last moment1516


of December 31, 2014, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 50 percent of the1517


total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would be1518


collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the exemption in1519


Code Section 48-8-3.2;1520


(C)  For the period commencing January 1, 2015, and concluding at the last moment1521


of December 31, 2015, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 75 percent of the1522


total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would be1523


collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the exemption in1524


Code Section 48-8-3.2; and1525


(D)  On or after January 1, 2016, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 1001526


percent of the total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district1527


that would be collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the1528


exemption in Code Section 48-8-3.2.1529


(b)  Any county or municipality which imposes the excise tax under this article during the1530


phase-in period provided for in this Code section shall levy such excise tax at the amount1531


provided for under the applicable year of the phase in.  Any county or municipality which1532


imposes such excise tax on or after January 1, 2016, shall impose it at the rate specified1533


under subparagraph (a)(3)(D) of this Code section.1534


(c)  The excise tax levied pursuant to this article shall be imposed only at the time that sales1535


and use tax on the sale or use of such energy would have been due and payable under Code1536


Section 48-8-30 but for the exemption in Code Section 48-8-3.2.  The excise tax shall be1537


due and payable in the same manner as would be otherwise required under Article 1 of1538


Chapter 8 of this title except as otherwise provided under this article.  The excise tax shall1539


be a debt of the purchaser of energy until it is paid and shall be recoverable at law in the1540


same manner as authorized for the recovery of other debts.  The dealer collecting the excise1541


tax shall remit the excise tax to the governing authority imposing the excise tax.  Every1542


dealer subject to an excise tax levied as provided in this article shall be liable for the excise1543


tax at the applicable rate on the charges actually collected or the amount of excise taxes1544


collected from the purchasers, whichever is greater.1545


(d)  A county or municipality levying an excise tax as provided in this subsection shall only1546


levy such excise tax initially by ordinance and at the equivalent rate as determined under1547







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 44 -


paragraph (3) of subsection (a) of this Code section.  Following such initial imposition, on1548


or after January 1, 2016, the rate of the tax under this article shall be controlled by the1549


maximum amount of local sales and use tax in effect in the special district, but in no event1550


more than 2 percent; however, this 2 percent limitation shall not apply in a municipality1551


that levies a water and sewer projects and costs tax pursuant to Article 4 of Chapter 8 of1552


this title, in which case there shall be a 3 percent limitation.  In the event the total rate of1553


local sales and use taxes in effect in the special district decreases from 2 percent to 11554


percent, the rate of the excise tax under this article shall likewise be reduced at the same1555


time such local sales and use tax rate reduction becomes effective.  In the event the total1556


rate of local sales and use taxes in effect in the special district increases from 1 percent to1557


2 percent, the rate of the excise tax under this article shall likewise be increased at the same1558


time such local sales and use tax rate increase becomes effective.1559


(e)  An excise tax under this article shall not be levied or collected by a county or1560


municipality outside the territorial limits of the special district located within the county.1561


48-13-113.1562


Prior to the adoption of the ordinance levying an excise tax under this article, the county1563


governing authority within a special district shall meet and confer with each of the1564


municipalities within the special district.  Any county that desires to have an excise tax1565


under this article levied within the special district shall deliver or mail a written notice to1566


the mayor or chief elected official in each municipality located within the special district.1567


If the governing authority of such county does not deliver or mail such notice within 301568


days of the date of the written request of the mayor or chief elected official of a1569


municipality within the special district, then such mayor or chief elected official shall1570


deliver or mail a written notice to the mayor or chief elected official in each municipality1571


located within the special district and to the county governing authority.  Such notice shall1572


contain the date, time, place, and purpose of a meeting at which the governing authorities1573


of the county and of each municipality are to discuss whether or not the excise tax should1574


levied be within the special district.  The notice shall be delivered or mailed at least ten1575


days prior to the date of the meeting.  The meeting shall be held at least 30 days prior to1576


the adoption of any ordinance levying an excise tax under this article.1577


48-13-114.1578


(a)(1) Following the meeting required under Code Section 48-13-113, the governing1579


authority of the county within the special district shall enter into an intergovernmental1580


agreement with the governing authority of each municipality wishing to participate in1581


such excise tax that provides for the distribution of the proceeds as provided in subsection1582







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 45 -


(c) of this Code section.  Following the execution of such agreement, the governing1583


authority of such county shall be authorized to adopt an ordinance levying the excise tax.1584


(2)  If a municipality elects not to participate in such excise tax by not signing such1585


agreement, then such municipality shall not receive any proceeds from the excise tax.  In1586


such event, any proportionate share that would have been distributed to such municipality1587


under an applicable local sales and use tax as provided in subsection (c) of this Code1588


section shall instead be distributed to the general fund of the county.1589


(b)  The excise tax proceeds shall be allocated and distributed by the county governing1590


authority at the end of each calendar month.  Of such excise tax proceeds, an amount equal1591


to 1 percent of the proceeds collected by the county shall be paid into the general fund of1592


the county to defray the costs of collection and administration.  The remainder of the1593


proceeds shall be distributed in accordance with the intergovernmental agreement as1594


provided in subsection (c) of this Code section.1595


(c)  The excise tax proceeds shall be allocated and distributed by the county governing1596


authority within 30 days following the end of each calendar month in the manner provided1597


in this subsection.  Such proceeds shall not be subject to any use or expenditure1598


requirements provided for under any of the local sales and use taxes but shall be authorized1599


to be expended in the same manner as otherwise would have been required under such local1600


sales and use taxes or may be expended for any lawful purpose.  Of such excise tax1601


proceeds:1602


(1)  If two such local sales and use taxes are in effect in the special district, an amount1603


equal to one-half of the proceeds of the excise tax shall be distributed to the county1604


general fund and the general fund of each participating municipality located in such1605


county according to the same proportionate share as specified under the distribution1606


provisions of the first local sales and use tax and an amount equal to one-half of the1607


proceeds of the excise tax shall be distributed to the county general fund and the general1608


fund of each participating municipality located in such county according to the same1609


proportionate share as specified under the distribution provisions of the second local sales1610


and use tax; or1611


(2)  If only one such local sales and use tax is in effect in the special district, then the1612


proceeds of the excise tax shall be distributed to the county general fund and the general1613


fund of each participating municipality located in such county according to the same1614


proportionate share as specified under the distribution provisions of the local sales and1615


use tax.1616







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 46 -


48-13-115.1617


Following the meeting required under Code Section 48-13-113, if the governing authority1618


of the county within the special district refuses to enter into an intergovernmental1619


agreement with the governing authority of each municipality wishing to participate in such1620


excise tax during the period commencing on January 1, 2013, and concluding on December1621


31, 2013, then the governing authority of each municipality wishing to levy the excise tax1622


shall be authorized to adopt an ordinance levying the excise tax within the corporate limits1623


of such municipality.  If a county elects not to participate in such excise tax by not signing1624


such agreement, then the county shall not receive any proceeds from the excise tax.  The1625


proceeds of such excise tax shall be deposited in the general fund of each municipality.  If1626


a county determines, subsequent to December 31, 2013, to commence proceedings for the1627


imposition of the excise tax under this article, then proceedings for such imposition shall1628


commence in the same manner as otherwise provided under Code Section 48-13-113.  In1629


that event, the excise tax levied by such municipality shall cease on the day immediately1630


prior to the day the new tax levied by the county commences.  If such municipality elects1631


not to participate, its current excise tax under this article shall still terminate on the date1632


specified in this Code section and it shall not receive any proceeds under the county levy.1633


48-13-116.1634


(a)(1)  An excise tax imposed under this article shall become effective on the first day of1635


the next succeeding calendar quarter which begins more than 80 days after the adoption1636


date of the ordinance.1637


(2)  If services are regularly billed on a monthly basis, however, the excise tax  shall1638


become effective with respect to and the tax shall apply to services billed on or after the1639


effective date specified in paragraph (1) of this subsection.1640


(b)  The excise tax shall cease to be imposed on the first day of the next succeeding1641


calendar quarter which begins more than 80 days after the adoption date of an ordinance1642


terminating the excise tax.1643


(c)  At any time no more than a single 2 percent excise tax under this article may be1644


imposed within a special district or a municipality.1645


(d)  Following the termination of an excise tax under this article, the governing authority1646


of a county within a special district or the mayor or chief elected official of a municipality1647


in the special district in which an excise tax authorized by this article is in effect may1648


initiate proceedings for the reimposition of a tax under this article in the same manner as1649


provided in this article for initial imposition of such tax.1650







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 47 -


48-13-117.1651


The manner of payment and collection of the excise tax and all other procedures related to1652


the tax, including, but not limited to, periodic auditing of dealers collecting and remitting1653


the excise tax under this article, shall be as provided by each county and municipality1654


electing to exercise the powers conferred by this article.1655


48-13-118.1656


As a part of the audit report required under Code Section 36-81-7, the auditor shall include,1657


in a separate schedule, a report of the revenues pertaining to the excise tax under this1658


article.1659


SECTION 5-5.1660


Said title is further amended by revising paragraphs (90) and (91) and enacting a new1661


paragraph in Code Section 48-8-3, relating to exemptions from sales and use tax, as follows:1662


(90)  The sale of electricity to a manufacturer located in this state used directly in the1663


manufacture of a product if the direct cost of such electricity exceeds 50 percent of the1664


cost of all materials, including electricity, used directly in the product; or1665


(91)  The sale of prewritten software which has been delivered to the purchaser1666


electronically or by means of load and leave; or1667


(92)(A)  For the period commencing January 1, 2012, until June 30, 2014, sales of1668


tangible personal property used for and in the construction of a competitive project of1669


regional significance.1670


(B)  The exemption provided in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph shall apply to1671


purchases made during the entire time of construction of the competitive project of1672


regional significance so long as such project meets the definition of a 'competitive1673


project of regional significance' within the period commencing January 1, 2012, until1674


June 30, 2014.1675


(C)  The department shall not be required to pay interest on any refund claims filed for1676


local sales and use taxes paid on purchases made prior to the implementation of this1677


paragraph.1678


(D)  As used in this paragraph, the term 'competitive project of regional significance'1679


means the location or expansion of some or all of a business enterprise's operations in1680


this state where the commissioner of economic development determines that the project1681


would have a significant regional impact.  The commissioner of economic development1682


shall promulgate regulations in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph1683


outlining the guidelines to be applied in making such determination.1684







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 48 -


SECTION 5-6.1685


Said title is further amended by revising paragraph (33.1) of Code Section 48-8-3, relating1686


to exemptions from sales and use taxes, as follows:1687


(33.1)(A)  The sale or use of jet fuel to or by a qualifying airline at a qualifying airport,1688


to the extent provided in subparagraphs (B) and (C) of this paragraph.1689


(B)(i)  For the period of time beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2012, the1690


sale or use of jet fuel to or by a qualifying airline at a qualifying airport shall be1691


exempt from state sales and use tax until the aggregate state sales and use tax liability1692


of the taxpayer during such period with respect to jet fuel exceeds $20 million,1693


computed as if the exemption provided in this division was not in effect during such1694


period.  Thereafter during such period, the exemption provided by this division shall1695


not apply to the sale or use of jet fuel to or by the qualifying airline.  For purposes of1696


this division, the terms 'qualifying airline' and 'qualifying airport' shall have the same1697


meanings as those terms were defined under the prior provisions of this paragraph as1698


it existed immediately prior to July 1, 2012.1699


(ii)  For the period of time beginning July 1, 2012, and ending June 30, 2013, the sale1700


or use of jet fuel to or by a qualifying airline at a qualifying airport shall be exempt1701


from 1 percent of the 4 percent state sales and use tax until the aggregate state sales1702


and use tax liability of the taxpayer during such period with respect to jet fuel exceeds1703


$10 million, computed as if the exemption provided in this division was not in effect1704


during such period.  Thereafter during such period, the sale or use of jet fuel to or by1705


the qualifying airline shall be subject to state sales and use tax.1706


(iii)  The exemptions provided in divisions (i) and (ii) of this subparagraph shall not1707


apply to any purchases of jet fuel occurring on or after July 1, 2013.1708


(C)  The sale or use of jet fuel to or by a qualifying airline at a qualifying airport shall1709


be exempt at all times from the sales or use tax levied and imposed as authorized1710


pursuant to Part 1 of Article 3 of this chapter.  For purposes of this subparagraph, a1711


'qualifying airport' shall mean any airport in the state that has had more than 750,0001712


takeoffs and landings during a calendar year; and a 'qualifying airline,' in addition to the1713


requirements of subparagraph (E) of this paragraph, shall mean, for the 12 month period1714


immediately preceding the applicable period specified in division (i) of subparagraph1715


(B) of this paragraph had, or would have had in the absence of any exemption during1716


such 12 month period, state sales and use tax liability on jet fuel of more than $151717


million.1718


(D)  Except as provided for in subparagraph (C) of this paragraph, this exemption shall1719


not apply to any other local sales and use tax levied or imposed at anytime any time in1720


any area consisting of less than the entire state, however authorized, including, but not1721







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 49 -


limited to, such taxes authorized by or pursuant to Section 25 of an Act approved1722


March 10, 1965 (Ga. L. 1965, p. 2243), as amended, the 'Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid1723


Transit Authority Act of 1965,' or such taxes as authorized by or pursuant to Part 2 of1724


Article 3 or Article 2, 2A, or 4 of this chapter.1725


(E)  For purposes of this paragraph division (ii) of subparagraph (B) of this paragraph1726


and paragraph (2) of subsection (d) of Code Section 48-8-241, a 'qualifying airline' shall1727


mean any person which: (i)  Is is authorized by the Federal Aviation Administration or1728


appropriate agency of the United States to operate as an air carrier under an air carrier1729


operating certificate and which provides regularly scheduled flights for the1730


transportation of passengers or cargo for hire; and.1731


(ii)  For the 12 month period immediately preceding the applicable period specified1732


in division (i) or (ii) of subparagraph (B) of this paragraph had, or would have had in1733


the absence of any exemption during such 12 month period, state sales and use tax1734


liability on jet fuel of more than $15 million.1735


(F)  For purposes of this paragraph and paragraph (2) of subsection (d) of Code Section1736


48-8-241, a 'qualifying airport' shall mean any airport in the state that has had more than1737


750,000 takeoffs and landings during a calendar year.  For purposes of division (ii) of1738


subparagraph (B) of this paragraph and paragraph (2) of subsection (d) of Code Section1739


48-8-241, the term 'qualifying airport' means a certificated air carrier airport in Georgia.1740


(G)  The commissioner shall adopt rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of1741


this paragraph.;1742


SECTION 5-7.1743


Title 2 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to agriculture, is amended by1744


revising Code Section 2-1-5, relating to certain agricultural annual license fees, as follows:1745


2-1-5.1746


(a)  An individual conducting business as a grain dealer, commercial feed dealer, and grain1747


warehouseman shall pay an annual license fee in an amount not less than $1,500.00 nor1748


more than $3,000.00.  Any fees collected pursuant to this Code section shall be retained1749


pursuant to the provisions of Code Section 45-12-92.1.1750


(b)  A qualified agriculture producer, as defined in Code Section 48-8-3.3, shall pay an1751


annual license fee in an amount not less than $15.00 nor more than $25.00, but in no event1752


shall the total amount of the proceeds from such fees exceed the cost of administering Code1753


Section 48-8-3.3.1754







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 50 -


PART VI1755


SECTION 6-1.1756


Part 1 of Article 1 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated,1757


relating to sales and use taxes, is amended by revising paragraph (8) of  Code Section 48-8-2,1758


relating to definitions regarding the state sales and use tax, as follows:1759


(8)  'Dealer' means every person who:1760


(A)  Has sold at retail, used, consumed, distributed, or stored for use or consumption1761


in this state tangible personal property and who cannot prove that the tax levied by this1762


article has been paid on the sale at retail or on the use, consumption, distribution, or1763


storage of the tangible personal property;1764


(B)  Imports or causes to be imported tangible personal property from any state or1765


foreign country for sale at retail, or for use, consumption, distribution, or storage for use1766


or consumption in this state;1767


(C)  Is the lessee or renter of tangible personal property and who pays to the owner of1768


the property a consideration for the use or possession of the property in this state1769


without acquiring title to the property;1770


(D)  Leases or rents tangible personal property for a consideration, permitting the use1771


or possession of the property in this state without transferring title to the property;1772


(E)  Maintains or has utilizes within this state, indirectly or by a subsidiary, an office,1773


distribution center, salesroom or sales office, warehouse, service enterprise, or any1774


other place of business, whether owned by such person or any other person, other than1775


a common carrier acting in its capacity as such;1776


(F)  Manufactures or produces tangible personal property for sale at retail or for use,1777


consumption, distribution, or storage for use or consumption in this state;1778


(G)  Sells at retail, offers for sale at retail, or has in his possession for sale at retail, or1779


for use, consumption, distribution, or storage for use or consumption in this state1780


tangible personal property;1781


(H)  Solicits business by an agent, employee, representative, or any other person;1782


(I)  Engages in the regular or systematic solicitation of a consumer market in this state,1783


unless the dealer's only activity in this state is:1784


(i)  Advertising or solicitation by:1785


(I)  Direct mail, catalogs, periodicals, or advertising fliers;1786


(II)  Means of print, radio, or television media; or1787


(III)  Telephone, computer, the Internet, cable, microwave, or other communication1788


system; or1789


(ii)  The delivery of tangible personal property within this state solely by common1790


carrier or United States mail; or1791







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 51 -


(iii)  To engage in convention and trade show activities as described in Section1792


513(d)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code, so long as such activities are the dealer's1793


sole physical presence in this state and  the dealer, including any of its representatives,1794


agents, salespersons, canvassers, independent contractors, or solicitors, does not1795


engage in those convention and trade show activities for more than five days, in1796


whole or in part, in this state during any 12 month period and did not derive more than1797


$100,000.00 of net income from those activities in this state during the prior calendar1798


year.  A retailer engaging in convention and trade show activities, as described in1799


Section 513(d)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code, is a retailer engaged in business1800


in this state and liable for collection of the applicable sales or use tax with respect to1801


any sale of tangible personal property occurring at the convention and trade show1802


activities and with respect to any sale of tangible personal property made pursuant to1803


an order taken at or during those convention and trade show activities.1804


The exceptions provided in divisions (i) and (ii) (i), (ii), and (iii) of this subparagraph1805


shall not apply to any requirements under Code Section 48-8-14;1806


(J)  Is an affiliate that sells at retail, offers for sale at retail in this state, or engages in1807


the regular or systematic solicitation of a consumer market in this state through a1808


related dealer located in this state unless:1809


(i)  The in-state dealer to which the affiliate is related does not engage in any of the1810


following activities on behalf of the affiliate:1811


(I)  Advertising;1812


(II)  Marketing;1813


(III)  Sales; or1814


(IV)  Other services; and1815


(ii)  The in-state dealer to which the affiliate is related accepts the return of tangible1816


personal property sold by the affiliate and also accepts the return of tangible personal1817


property sold by any person or dealer that is not an affiliate on the same terms and1818


conditions as an affiliate's return;1819


As used in this subparagraph, the term 'affiliate' means any person that is related1820


directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, is1821


under common control with, or is subject to the control of a dealer described in1822


subparagraphs (A) through (I) of this paragraph or in this subparagraph;1823


(K)(i)  Makes sales of tangible personal property or services that are taxable under1824


this chapter if a related member, as defined in Code Section 48-7-28.3, other than a1825


common carrier acting in its capacity as such, that has substantial nexus in this state:1826


(I)  Sells a similar line of products as the person and does so under the same or a1827


similar business name; or1828







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 52 -


(II)  Uses trademarks, service marks, or trade names in this state that are the same1829


or substantially similar to those used by the person.1830


(ii)  The presumption that a person described in this subparagraph qualifies as a dealer1831


in this state may be rebutted by showing that the person does not have a physical1832


presence in this state and that any in-state activities conducted on its behalf are not1833


significantly associated with the person's ability to establish and maintain a market1834


in this state;1835


(L)(i)  Makes sales of tangible personal property or services that are taxable under this1836


chapter if any other person, other than a common carrier acting in its capacity as such,1837


who has a substantial nexus in this state:1838


(I)  Delivers, installs, assembles, or performs maintenance services for the person's1839


customers within this state;1840


(II)  Facilitates the person's delivery of property to customers in this state by1841


allowing the person's customers to pick up property sold by the person at an office,1842


distribution facility, warehouse, storage place, or similar place of business1843


maintained by the person in this state; or1844


(III)  Conducts any other activities in this state that are significantly associated with1845


the person's ability to establish and maintain a market in this state for the person's1846


sales.1847


(ii)  The presumption that a person described in this subparagraph qualifies as a dealer1848


in this state may be rebutted by showing that the person does not have a physical1849


presence in this state and that any in-state activities conducted on its behalf are not1850


significantly associated with the person's ability to establish and maintain a market1851


in this state;1852


(M)(i)  Enters into an agreement with one or more other persons who are residents of1853


this state under which the resident, for a commission or other consideration, based on1854


completed sales, directly or indirectly refers potential customers, whether by a link1855


on an Internet website, an in-person oral presentation, telemarketing, or otherwise, to1856


the person, if the cumulative gross receipts from sales by the person to customers in1857


this state who are referred to the person by all residents with this type of an agreement1858


with the person is in excess of $50,000.00 during the preceding 12 months.1859


(ii)  The presumption that a person described in this subparagraph is a dealer in this1860


state may be rebutted by submitting proof that the residents with whom the person has1861


an agreement did not engage in any activity within this state that was significantly1862


associated with the person's ability to establish or maintain the person's market in the1863


state during the preceding 12 months.  Such proof may consist of sworn written1864


statements from all of the residents with whom the person has an agreement stating1865







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 53 -


that they did not engage in any solicitation in this state on behalf of the person during1866


the preceding year, provided that such statements were provided and obtained in good1867


faith.  This subparagraph shall take effect 90 days after the effective date of this Act1868


and shall apply to sales made, uses occurring, and services rendered on or after the1869


effective date of this subparagraph without regard to the date the person and the1870


resident entered into the agreement described in this subparagraph;1871


(N)  Notwithstanding any of the provisions contained in this paragraph, with respect to1872


a person that is not a resident or domiciliary of Georgia, that does not engage in any1873


other business or activity in Georgia, and that has contracted with a commercial printer1874


for printing to be conducted in Georgia, such person shall not be deemed a 'dealer' in1875


Georgia merely because such person:1876


(i)  Owns tangible or intangible property which is located at the Georgia premises of1877


a commercial printer for use by such printer in performing services for the owner;1878


(ii)  Makes sales and distributions of printed material produced at and shipped or1879


distributed from the Georgia premises of the commercial printer;1880


(iii)  Performs activities of any kind at the Georgia premises of the commercial printer1881


which are directly related to the services provided by the commercial printer; or1882


(iv)  Has printing, including any printing related activities, and distribution related1883


activities performed by the commercial printer in Georgia for or on its behalf,1884


nor shall such person, absent any contact with Georgia other than with or through the1885


use of the commercial printer or the use of the United States Postal Service or a1886


common carrier, have an obligation to collect sales or use tax from any of its customers1887


located in Georgia based upon the activities described in divisions (i) through (iv) of1888


this subparagraph.  In no event described in this subparagraph shall such person be1889


considered to have a fixed place of business in Georgia at either the commercial1890


printer's premises or at any place where the commercial printer performs services on1891


behalf of that person;1892


(O)  Any ruling, agreement, or contract, whether written or oral and whether express1893


or implied, between a person and this state's executive branch or any other state agency1894


or department stating, agreeing, or ruling that such person is not a dealer required to1895


collect sales and use tax in this state despite the presence of a warehouse, distribution1896


center, or fulfillment center in this state that is owned or operated by the person or a1897


related member shall be null and void unless it is specifically approved by a majority1898


vote of each body of the General Assembly.  For purposes of this subparagraph, the1899


term 'related member' has the same meaning as in Code Section 48-7-28.3;1900


(L)(P)  Each dealer shall collect the tax imposed by this article from the purchaser,1901


lessee, or renter, as applicable, and no action seeking either legal or equitable relief on1902







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 54 -


a sale, lease, rental, or other transaction may be had in this state by the dealer unless the1903


dealer has fully complied with this article; or1904


(M)(Q)  The commissioner shall promulgate such rules and regulations necessary to1905


administer this paragraph, including other such information, applications, forms, or1906


statements as the commissioner may reasonably require.1907


SECTION 6-2.1908


Said part is further amended by revising paragraphs (75) and (82) of Code Section 48-8-3,1909


relating to exemptions from sales and use taxes, as follows:1910


(75)(A)  The sale of any covered item.  The exemption provided by this paragraph1911


shall apply only to sales occurring during a period commencing periods:1912


(i)  Commencing at 12:01 A.M. on July 30, 2009 August 10, 2012, and concluding1913


at 12:00 Midnight on August 2, 2009 August 11, 2012; and1914


(ii)  Commencing at 12:01 A.M. on August 9, 2013, and concluding at 12:001915


Midnight on August 10, 2013.1916


(B)  As used in this paragraph, the term 'covered item' shall mean:1917


(i)  Articles of clothing and footwear with a sales price of $100.00 or less per article1918


of clothing or pair of footwear, excluding accessories such as jewelry, handbags,1919


umbrellas, eyewear, watches, and watchbands;1920


(ii)  A single purchase, with a sales price $1,500.00 of $1,000.00 or less, of personal1921


computers and personal computer related accessories purchased for noncommercial1922


home or personal use, including personal computer base units and keyboards,1923


personal digital assistants, handheld computers, monitors, other peripheral devices,1924


modems for Internet and network access, and nonrecreational software, whether or1925


not they are to be utilized in association with the personal computer base unit.1926


Computer and computer related accessories shall not include furniture and any1927


systems, devices, software, or peripherals designed or intended primarily for1928


recreational use; and1929


(iii)  Noncommercial purchases of general school supplies to be utilized in the1930


classroom or in classroom related activities, such as homework, up to a sales price of1931


$20.00 per item including pens, pencils, notebooks, paper, book bags, calculators,1932


dictionaries, thesauruses, and children's books and books listed on approved school1933


reading lists for pre-kindergarten through twelfth grade.1934


(C)  The exemption provided by this paragraph shall not apply to rentals, sales in a1935


theme park, entertainment complex, public lodging establishment, restaurant, or airport1936


or to purchases for trade, business, or resale.1937







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 55 -


(D)  The commissioner shall promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to1938


implement and administer this paragraph including but not be limited to a list of those1939


articles and items qualifying for the exemption pursuant to this paragraph;1940


(82)(A)  Purchase of energy efficient products or water efficient products with a sales1941


price of $1,500.00 or less per product purchased for noncommercial home or personal1942


use.  The exemption provided by this paragraph shall apply only to sales occurring1943


during a period commencing periods:1944


(i)  Commencing at 12:01 A.M. on October 1, 2009 October 5, 2012, and concluding1945


at 12:00 Midnight on October 4, 2009 October 7, 2012; and1946


(ii)  Commencing at 12:01 A.M. on October 4, 2013, and concluding at 12:001947


Midnight on October 6, 2013.1948


(B)  As used in this paragraph, the term:1949


(i)  'Energy efficient product' means any energy efficient product for noncommercial1950


home or personal use consisting of any dishwasher, clothes washer, air conditioner,1951


ceiling fan, fluorescent light bulb, dehumidifier, programmable thermostat,1952


refrigerator, door, or window which has been designated by the United States1953


Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Energy as1954


meeting or exceeding each such agency's energy saving efficiency requirements or1955


which have been designated as meeting or exceeding such requirements under each1956


such agency's Energy Star program.1957


(ii)  'Water efficient product' means any product used for the conservation or efficient1958


use of water which has been designated by the United States Environmental1959


Protection Agency as meeting or exceeding such agency's water saving efficiency1960


requirements or which has been designated as meeting or exceeding such1961


requirements under such agency's Water Sense program.1962


(C)  The exemption provided for in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph shall not apply1963


to purchases of energy efficient products or water efficient products purchased for1964


trade, business, or resale.1965


(D)  The commissioner shall promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to1966


implement and administer this paragraph;1967


PART VII1968


SECTION 7-1.1969


(a)  This part, paragraph (4) of subsection (c) of Code Section 48-8-3.2 contained in Section1970


5-2, and Section 6-2 of this Act shall become effective upon approval by the Governor or1971


upon becoming law without such approval.1972


(b)  Section 5-5 of this Act shall become effective on January 1, 2012.1973







12 LC 34 3484S/AP


H. B. 386
- 56 -


(c)  Section 6-1 of this Act shall become effective on October 1, 2012.1974


(d)  Part IV and Section 5-6 of this Act shall become effective on July 1, 2012.1975


(e)  Parts II and III of this Act shall become effective on January 1, 2013, and shall be1976


applicable to all taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2013.1977


(f)  Part I of this Act shall become effective March 1, 2013.1978


(g)  The remaining portions of this Act shall become effective on January 1, 2013.1979


(h)  Tax, penalty, and interest liabilities and refund eligibility for prior taxable years shall not1980


be affected by the passage of this Act and shall continue to be governed by the provisions of1981


general law as it existed immediately prior to the effective date of the relevant portion of this1982


Act.1983


(i)  This Act shall not abate any prosecution, punishment, penalty, administrative proceedings1984


or remedies, or civil action related to any violation of law committed prior to the effective1985


date of the relevant portion of this Act.1986


SECTION 7-2.1987


In the event any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Act shall be declared1988


or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall in no manner affect the other1989


sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases of this Act, which shall remain of full1990


force and effect as if the section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase so declared or1991


adjudged invalid or unconstitutional were not originally a part hereof.  The General1992


Assembly declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Act if it had known1993


that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.1994


SECTION 7-3.1995


All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed.1996







STATE OF GEORGIA 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  


 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of the 


____ day of February, 2013, by and between FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political 


subdivision of the State of Georgia, (the “County”), FAYETTE COUNTY SCHOOL 


DISTRICT, a body corporate and politic of the State of Georgia, (the “School District”) CITY 


OF PEACHTREE CITY, a municipal corporation of the State of Georgia, CITY OF 


FAYETTEVILLE, a municipal corporation of the State of Georgia, TOWN OF TYRONE, a 


municipal corporation of the State of Georgia, and TOWN OF BROOKS, a municipal 


corporation of the State of Georgia.  (The municipal corporations are collectively hereafter 


referred to as the “Municipalities” and the County, School District and Municipalities are 


collectively hereafter referred to as the “Governmental Entities”).  


W I T N E S S E T H: 


 


 WHEREAS, the General Assembly passed an omnibus tax bill, HB 386, in the 2012 


legislative session which, among other provisions, changes the tax collection/distribution 


procedures for motor vehicles in the State of Georgia; and  


 WHEREAS, beginning on March 1, 2013, there will no longer be a sales tax charged on the 


sale of new and used motor vehicles, rather; sales taxes applicable to both dealership and private 


party purchases will be replaced with a new Title Ad Valorem Tax (“TAVT”) in 2013, to be in 


effect each and every year thereafter until enacted otherwise; and  


 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT 2







- 2 - 


 


 WHEREAS, although the new TAVT will not be due every year and ad valorem taxes are 


being eliminated on motor vehicles purchased after March 1, 2013, such vehicle owners will 


continue to pay ad valorem taxes on the vehicles they currently own under the previously enacted 


methodology for assessing motor vehicle taxes; and 


 WHEREAS, the respective county tax commissioners/collectors in the State of Georgia 


will be required to collect ad valorem taxes and the TAVT, and make distribution to the 


governmental entities authorized to receive such tax distributions in accordance with provisions of 


HB 386 and other applicable laws of the State of Georgia.  


 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits flowing to each of the 


respective parties hereto and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 


of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties to this Intergovernmental Agreement agree as 


follows:  


 1. The methodology for collections/distributions of ad valorem taxes for all titled and 


non-titled vehicles owned as of February 28, 2013, will remain the same as in previous years for 


the calendar year 2013 and every year thereafter until such vehicles are sold or re-titled.  These ad 


valorem tax collections will continue to be distributed to the Governmental Entities in the same 


manner as was previously required under applicable provisions of Georgia Laws. 


 2. The State of Georgia’s portion of ad valorem taxes and the TAVT will be remitted 


to the State in accordance with provisions of Georgia Laws.  The remainder of ad valorem taxes 


and the TAVT collected will be distributed to the Governmental Entities within thirty (30) days 


following the end of each calendar month as follows: 


  (a) Every month beginning with March 2013, and every month of every year 


 thereafter, ad valorem tax collections/distributions will be compared to the ad valorem tax


 collections/distributions for the applicable month in the year 2012 (the “base tax month and 







- 3 - 


 


 year”), as each applies to the respective Governmental Entities.  If the ad valorem tax 


 collections are sufficient, a distribution will be made each month to the respective 


 Governmental Entities equal in amount to that received in the applicable base tax month 


 and year 2012. 


  (b) In the event post March 1, 2013 ad valorem tax collections/distributions for 


 any of the Governmental Entities are less than the ad valorem tax collections/distributions 


 received as compared to the applicable base tax months, such occurrence will be identified 


 as a shortfall for any given Governmental Entity. 


  (c) The TAVT will first be distributed to the respective Governmental 


 Entities to cover any shortfalls in the ad valorem tax collections/distributions for any 


 month of any year the TAVT year is distributed.  The amount distributed to each 


 Governmental Entity having a shortfall shall be equal in proportion (to be calculated as a 


 percentage) comparing the amount of TAVT collected to the total recognized  ad 


 valorem shortfall for each of the respective Governmental Entities.   


  (d) In the event the TAVT collections are less than the total shortfalls, then 


 the amount of the shortfall as to each of the Governmental Entities will be carried 


 forward and added to any shortfalls  identified in the following month(s). 


  (e)  In the event the tax year 2013 (and each year thereafter) ad valorem tax 


 collections/distributions exceed the base tax year ad valorem tax collections/distributions, 


 and there are no shortfalls or carry-over shortfalls from prior months, the TAVT will then 


 be distributed as provided in Section 3 below. 


 3. Following the distribution of the TAVT collections to cover any and all shortfalls in 


ad valorem tax collections/distributions, the remaining TAVT collections will be distributed in the 


following manner: 







- 4 - 


 


 


  (a) An amount equal to the first one-third (1/3) of the TAVT collection 


 overage will be distributed to the School District. 


  (b) An amount equal to the second one-third (1/3) of the TAVT collection 


 overage will be distributed to the County and the respective Municipalities in the same 


 percentage amounts as the County and each Municipality is receiving under a distribution 


 certificate for the joint county and municipal sales and use tax authorized under provisions 


 of Georgia Code, Article 2 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 in effect (the Local Option Sales Tax 


 (“LOST”)). 


  (c) An amount equal to the third one-third (1/3) of the TAVT collection 


 overage will be distributed to the County and the Municipalities in the same manner as 


 specified under the intergovernmental agreement as otherwise authorized under the 


 provisions of Georgia Code, Part 1 of Article 3 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 (the Special 


 Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (“SPLOST”) previously in effect).  If a SPLOST is not 


 renewed within twelve (12) months following its expiration, this one-third (1/3) amount 


 shall be distributed to the County and Municipalities in same percentage amounts as the 


 County and each Municipality is receiving under the LOST distribution certificate.   


 4. In the event any dispute arises under this Agreement, the aggrieved party shall 


notify the Fayette County Tax Commissioner promptly in writing of its contentions and submit its 


claim.  The notice contemplated herein shall be distributed to each party to this Intergovernmental 


Agreement, who will then be allowed thirty (30) days to respond to the aggrieved party’s 


contentions and claim.  All parties hereto shall work diligently to resolve any dispute, the absence  


of which shall be resolved through binding mediation in accordance with the rules promulgated by 


the Office of the 6
th


 District Alternative Dispute Resolution Program. 







- 5 - 


 


 


 5. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be mailed or delivered to the 


following addresses, or such other address, as a party may designate in writing: 


County:  County Administrator, 140 Stonewall Ave., West, Fayetteville, GA 30214 


School District:  Superintendent, P.O. Box 879, 210 Stonewall Ave., Fayetteville, GA 30214 


City of Peachtree City:  City Manager, 151 Willowbend Rd., Peachtree City, GA 30269 


City of Fayetteville:  City Manager, 240 Glynn St., South, Fayetteville, GA 30214 


Town of Tyrone:  Town Manager, 881 Senoia Rd. Tyrone, GA 30290 


Town of Brooks: Town Manager, P.O. Box 96, 113 Church St., Brooks, GA 30205  


6. This Agreement contains the entire agreement by and between the parties hereto, 


and all agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties not embodied in this Intergovernmental 


Agreement shall be of no force or effect. 


7.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any respect except by a written 


agreement executed by each of the respective parties hereto in the same manner as this Agreement 


is executed.  


8.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 


deemed an original, and all of such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same 


instrument. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective duly authorized 


elected official to execute, seal and deliver this Intergovernmental Agreement, all as of the day and 


year first above written. 


 


[All Signatures are Contained on the Following Page] 







- 6 - 


 


ATTEST:                                    FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                                        Steve Brown, Chairman 


  (Affix Seal)     Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


 


 


ATTEST:                                    FAYETTE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                                  Marion Key, Chairperson 


  (Affix Seal)     Fayette County Board of Education 


 


 


 


ATTEST:                                    CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                                        Don Haddix, Mayor 


  (Affix Seal) 


        


 


ATTEST:                                    CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                                        Greg Clifton , Mayor 


  (Affix Seal) 


 


 


ATTEST:                                    TOWN OF TYRONE 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                  Eric Dial, Mayor 


  (Affix Seal) 


 


 


ATTEST:                                    TOWN OF BROOKS 


 


 


____________________________   By:__________________________(SEAL) 


                                  Daniel Langford, Jr., Mayor 


  (Affix Seal) 





		Administration- Intergovernme...ement Agenda Request File

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement-Attachment 1

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement-Attachment 2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-03 imposing a 911 charge for Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) Services 


subscribed to by subscribers whose billing addresses are within the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia, at a rate of $1.50 per month 


per VOIP subscriber. 


Historically, Fayette County has imposed 911 charges on telephone services and wireless telecommunications within Fayette County. 


 


Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) typically refers to communications that are transported via the internet instead of through a public 


switched telephone network.  VOIP is also available on smartphones and other portable devises that are not phones, such as laptops, 


that are able to connect with and send communications through internet technology (Examples include text messaging or fax messages). 


 


Resolution 2013-03 will impose a monthly $1.50 911 charge for VOIP services which are subscribed to by subscribers whose billing 


addresses are in Fayette County's jurisdiction.  


 


This monthly charge is permitted by Georgia State Law. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-03 imposing a 911 charge for Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) Services 


subscribed to by subscribers whose billing addresses are within the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia, at a rate of $1.50 per month 


per VOIP subscriber. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, February 28, 2013







 
 −1− 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


RESOLUTION 


NO. 2013-___ 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AUTHORIZE THE IMPOSITION OF A 911 CHARGE FOR 


VOICE OVER INTERNET PROTOCOL (VOIP) SERVICE; TO PROMOTE THE 


PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Fayette County (the “County”) is the duly 


elected governing authority for the County; and 


WHEREAS, the County presently operates an Emergency 911 System; and 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has adopted resolutions imposing a monthly 


911 charge on telephone services and wireless telecommunications within the County; 


WHEREAS, the 911 charge imposed upon telephone service and wireless 


telecommunications is $1.50 per month per subscriber and is uniform and does not vary according 


to the type of telephone service or wireless telecommunications used; and 


WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Title 46 of the Official Code of Georgia 


Annotated authorizes a local government to impose a monthly 911 charge on Voice over Internet 


Protocol (VOIP) services subscribed to by subscribers whose billing addresses are within the 


jurisdiction of the local government; and 







 
 −2− 


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed at a rate of up to $1.50 per month per VOIP 


subscriber; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the question of imposing a wireless enhanced 


911 charge in the County on ____________________, __________, 2013. 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing authority of Fayette 


County, Georgia that a monthly 911 charge shall hereby be imposed upon Voice over Internet 


Protocol (VOIP) services subscribed to by subscribers whose billing addresses are within the 


jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at a rate of $1.50 per month per VOIP subscriber. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said wireless charge shall be imposed on the first 


day of the month of ______________________, 2013. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to each 


Voice over Internet Protocol service supplier providing service in Fayette County, Georgia. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 







 
 −3− 


 SO RESOLVED this ____ day of _____________________, 2013. 


 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA 


 
 


By:_______________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  
 


ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________ 
Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________ 
County Attorney 
 





		Administration- VOIP Resolution 2013-03 Agenda Request File

		Administration- VOIP Resolution 2013-03 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-02 imposing a Wireless Enhanced 911 Charge upon each wireless 


telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing address is within the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at 


a rate of $1.50 per month per wireless connection.


Fayette County is authorized through Georgia State Law to impose a charge of up to $1.50 per month per wireless connection to wireless 


telecommunications subscribers whose billing address is located within the jurisdiction of Fayette County. 


 


The charges able to be imposed by any local government that operates or contracts for the operation of an emergency 911 system which 


is capable of providing automatic number identification and automatic location identification of a wireless telecommunications connection. 


 


If approved, Resolution 2013-02 will impose a monthly $1.50 Wireless Enhanced 911 Charge upon each eligible subscriber within 


Fayette County's jurisdiction.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-02 imposing a Wireless Enhanced 911 Charge upon each wireless 


telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing address is within the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at 


a rate of $1.50 per month per wireless connection.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, February 28, 2013







 
 −1− 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


RESOLUTION 


NO. 2013-___ 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AUTHORIZE THE IMPOSITION OF A WIRELESS 


ENHANCED 911 CHARGE; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND 


WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Fayette County (the “County”) is the duly 


elected governing authority for the County; and 


WHEREAS, the County presently operates an Emergency 911 System; and 


WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Title 46 of the Official Code of Georgia 


Annotated authorizes local governments to impose a wireless enhanced 911 charge upon each 


wireless telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing address is 


within the jurisdiction of the local government; and 


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed at a rate of up to $1.50 per month per wireless 


connection; and 


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed by any local government that operates or 


contracts for the operation of an emergency 911 system which is capable of providing automatic 


number identification and automatic location identification of a wireless telecommunications 


connection; and 







 
 −2− 


WHEREAS, the County operates or has contracted for the operation of an Emergency 911 


system which is capable of providing automatic number identification and automatic location 


identification of a wireless telecommunications connection; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the question of imposing a wireless enhanced 


911 charge in the County on ____________________, __________, 2013. 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing authority of Fayette 


County, Georgia that a wireless enhanced 911 charge shall hereby be imposed upon each wireless 


telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing address is within the 


jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at a rate of $1.50 per month per wireless connection 


provided to each telephone subscriber. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said wireless charge shall be imposed on the first 


day of the month of ______________________, 2013. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to each 


wireless service supplier providing service in Fayette County, Georgia. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 







 
 −3− 


 SO RESOLVED this ____ day of _____________________, 2013. 


 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA 


 
 


By:_______________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  
 


ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________ 
Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________ 
County Attorney 
 





		Administration- Wireless Enha...13-02 Agenda Request File

		Administration- Wireless Enhanced Resolution 2013-03 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Proclamation of March 7 and March 12, 2013 as "Cancer Prevention Days".


The American Cancer Society, in an effort to have a "cancer-free tomorrow" is conducting a new research study called Cancer 


Prevention Study-3 (CPS-3).  This study is designed to help understand how to prevent disease which will, in turn, save lives. 


 


The American Cancer Society is asking Fayette County to proclaim March 7 and March 12 as "Cancer Prevention Days", and in doing so, 


is asking citizens throughout Fayette County to participate in the study. 


 


Proclamation of March 7 and March 12, 2013 as "Cancer Prevention Days".


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 28, 2013







CANCER  
PREVENTION 


STUDY-3 


Research today for a 
cancer-free tomorrow 


Join the movement for 
more birthdays. CPS-3 


The life you save may be your own. 


If you’ve ever known someone with cancer, you 
know that birthdays are a very significant  
milestone.  There are nearly 12 million people 
in America who have survived cancer—and 
countless more who have avoided it.  Cancer 
Preven(on Study-3 (CPS-3) is a new research 
study being conducted by the American Cancer 
Society to help understand how to prevent the 
disease, which will save lives and create a world 
with more birthdays. 


Who is eligible to  
par(cipate? 
Anyone who: 
□  Is willing to make a long-term commitment 
to the study, which involves comple(ng  
periodic follow-up surveys at home. 
□  Is between 30 and 65 years old. 
□  Has never been diagnosed with cancer (not 
including basal or squamous cell skin cancer). 


What does study  
par(cipa(on involve? 


Confiden(ality 
Confiden(ality is of the utmost importance to 
us and we will make every effort to protect the 
privacy of study par(cipants. We have mul(ple 
procedures in place to safeguard personal  
informa(on that is collected. 


The enrollment process involves two steps,  
one in person and one at home. As part of  
the in-person enrollment you will: 
□ Read and sign an informed consent form. 
□ Complete a brief wri6en survey. 
□ Provide some physical measurements. 
□ Give a small blood sample. 
At home, you will complete a more  
comprehensive baseline survey that asks for  
informa(on on lifestyle, behavioral, and other 
factors related to your health.  We will con(nue 
to mail follow-up surveys every few years to  
update your informa(on. 


Summit Family YMCA 
1765 Highway 34 East Newnan, GA 30265 


Thurs. March 7th 10am-2pm 
Tues. March 12th 7am-11am 
 
Enroll today at 
www.cps3atlanta.org 


For more informa(on: Visit cancer.org/cps3,  


Email cps3@cancer.org, or Call Toll Free 1-888-604-5888 


Proclamation
Proclamation
Proclamation
Proclamation    WHEREAS,  The American Cancer Society’s Cancer Prevention Study – 3 is recruiting 


men and women across the United States to help better understand the genetic,  


environmental and lifestyle factors that cause or prevent cancer;  
WHEREAS,  This year more than 40,400 new cancer cases will be diagnosed an  nearly 


1,600 cancer deaths will occur in Georgia;  WHEREAS,  Early detection of cancer is known to reduce mortality rates; 
WHEREAS,  Two-thirds of cancer are preventable with basic lifestyle changes; 


WHEREAS,  Physical activity, healthy eating habits, avoidance of tobacco products,  


protection from ultraviolet radiation, and regular cancer screenings are shown to reduce 


the risk of getting cancer, prevent it, or find it early when it’s most treatable; 
WHEREAS,  Investment and participation in lifesaving cancer research can save lives; 


WHEREAS,  CPS-3 is an ongoing study of participants to measure how lifestyle,  


environment, and behavior increase cancer risk; WHEREAS,  The American Cancer Society is bringing CPS-3 to the community as an  


opportunity to participate in a historic national research project; 
WHEREAS,  Enrollment in CPS-3 by members of the community will provide increased 


cancer knowledge and awareness; WHEREAS,  Georgia is uniting with the American Cancer Society to enroll participants in 


Cancer Prevention Study-3 during the weeks of March 1st-15th 2013. 
WHEREAS,  Georgia is known as a caring community that supports Relay For Life events, 


which raise money each year to help fund research such as this, as well as education, 


advocacy and patient services right here in Georgia.  







“ If you have ever had a friend or 
family member diagnosed with 
cancer, one of the hardest things is 
feeling like we can’t do anything to 
help.  CPS-3 is something we can do 
to help in the fight against this 
disease.” 


 – Study participant 


 
Volunteer today for a  
cancer-free tomorrow. 
CANCER PREVENTION STUDY-3 


 
What if you could prevent even one family from hearing the words “you have cancer”?  
 
What if you could help save lives from cancer and give people more of their most precious 
resource:  TIME?  More time with family and friends, to help create a world with more 
memories, more celebrations ... and more birthdays. 
 
This year, you can join the movement to help create a world with less cancer and more 
birthdays by enrolling in the American Cancer Society’s research study called Cancer 
Prevention Study-3 (CPS-3). 
 
Join the movement for less cancer and more birthdays.  Volunteer for CPS-3. 
 


Who can join the study? 
 
The study is open to anyone in the United States and Puerto Rico who is willing to commit to 
the study long-term which means completing periodic follow up surveys at home for the next 
20-30 years, is between 30 and 65 years old, and has never been diagnosed with cancer (not 
including basal or squamous cell skin cancer) 
 


How can you participate? 
 
The enrollment process involves two steps.  One step takes place at a local enrollment event, 
where you will be asked to read and sign an informed consent form, complete a brief written 
survey, provide a waist circumference measurement and a small blood sample (similar to a 
doctor’s visit - 7 teaspoons total). The blood sample will be taken by a certified, trained 
phlebotomist.  
 
The other step takes place at home, where you will complete a more detailed survey. This 
survey will ask information on lifestyle, behavioral, and other factors related to your health.   
 
Periodically, you will receive a survey at home to update that information. 
 
Local enrollment is being made possible in partnership with the YMCA of Metro Atlanta.  To 
see more detail on date/time/location, visit 
 


www.cps3atlanta.org 
 


 
What else can you do? 
 
Make sure to bring friends with you when you show up  
to change the world.  And tell everyone you know about 
this historic opportunity to save lives and fight for every 


             birthday threatened by every cancer in your community. 
 
For more information, visit cancer.org/cps3 
or call toll free at 1.888.604.5888. 


 
 


Local enrollment  
is being made 
possible in 
partnership with  
the YMCA of 
Metro Atlanta. 


For more 
information, visit 
cancer.org/cps3 or 
call toll free at  
1-888-604-5888 







 
To schedule your appointment go to: www.cps3atlanta.org 


Northeast/North Atlanta 


Forsyth County Family YMCA, 
6050 Y St, Cumming, GA 30040  


TUES 3/12 8A-12PM             WED 3/13 3-7PM 
 


Ed Isakson/Alpharetta FamilyEd Isakson/Alpharetta FamilyEd Isakson/Alpharetta FamilyEd Isakson/Alpharetta Family    YMCAYMCAYMCAYMCA, 
655 Preston Ridge Rd, Alpharetta, GA 30005 
FRI 3/1 7-11AM             WED 3/6 3-7PM 


 
Robert D. Fowler Robert D. Fowler Robert D. Fowler Robert D. Fowler Family YMCAFamily YMCAFamily YMCAFamily YMCA, 


5600 West Jones Bridge Rd, Norcross, GA 30092 
TUES 3/5 8A-12PM              WED 3/6 3-7PM 


 
J.M. TullJ.M. TullJ.M. TullJ.M. Tull----Gwinnett Family YMCAGwinnett Family YMCAGwinnett Family YMCAGwinnett Family YMCA, 


2985 Sugarloaf Pkwy, Lawrenceville, GA 30045 
TUES 3/5 10A-2PM              THURS 3/7 8A-12PM 


East Atlanta 


Covington Family YMCACovington Family YMCACovington Family YMCACovington Family YMCA,  
2140 Newton Dr, Covington, GA 30014 


SAT 3/2 9A-1PM               SAT 3/9 9A-1PM 
 


DecaturDecaturDecaturDecatur----DeKalb Family YMCADeKalb Family YMCADeKalb Family YMCADeKalb Family YMCA,  
1100 Clairemont Ave, Decatur, GA 30030 


FRI 3/15 7-11AM 
 


Wade Walker Family YMCAWade Walker Family YMCAWade Walker Family YMCAWade Walker Family YMCA,  
5605 Rockbridge Rd, Stone Mountain, GA 30088 
WED 3/13 7-11AM         THURS 3/14 3-7PM 


Northwest Atlanta 


McCleskey-East Cobb Family YMCA,  
1055 East Piedmont Rd NE, Marietta, GA 30062 
TUES 3/5 9A-1PM                 WED 3/6 3-7PM 


 
Northeast Cobb Family YMCA,  


3010 Johnson Ferry Rd, Marietta, GA 30062 
TUES 3/12 9A-1PM               WED 3/13 3-7PM 


 
Mansour Center,  


995 Roswell St NE, Marietta, GA 30060 
TUES 3/12 3-7PM                 WED 3/13 8A-12PM 


 
Northwest Family YMCA,  


1700 Dennis Kemp Ln, Kennesaw, GA 30152 
FRI 3/8 11A-3PM                  SAT 3/15 9A-1PM 


 
Carl E. G. Cecil Pruett Community Center Family YMCA,   


151 Waleska St, Canton, GA 30114  
TUES 3/5 AM 7-11               WED 3/6 3-7PM 


South Atlanta 


Summit Family YMCA, 
1765 Highway 34 East, Newnan, GA 30265 


THURS 3/7 10A-2PM          TUES 3/12 7-11AM 
 


Piedmont Henry Hospital, 
1133 Eagle's Landing Pkwy, Stockbridge, Georgia 30281 


SAT 3/9 9A-1PM 
 


Clayton County Library, 
Headquarters Branch, 


865 Battle Creek Rd, Jonesboro, GA 30236 
TUES 3/5 3-7PM                  WED 3/6 10A-2PM 


 


 


Metro Atlanta 


Northside Hospital,    
1000 Johnson Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30342 


WED 3/6 7-10:30AM                      
 


Cowart Family/Ashford Dunwoody YMCA,    
3692 Ashford Dunwoody R., Atlanta, GA 30319 


FRI 3/8 7-11AM                     TUES 3/12 3-7PM 
 


Sanders Family YMCA at Buckhead,       
1160 Moores Mill Rd, Atlanta, GA 30327 


FRI 3/8 7-11 AM                     SAT 3/9 8A-12PM 
 


East Lake Family YMCA,              
275 East Lake Blvd, Atlanta, GA 30317 


FRI 3/8 7-11AM                           TUES 3/12 10A-2PM 
 


The Villages at Carver Family YMCA,      
1600 Pryor Rd, Atlanta, GA 30315 


FRI 3/8 7-11 AM                      SAT 3/9 9A-1PM 
 


Andrew and Walter Young Family YMCA,   
2220 Campbellton Rd, Atlanta, GA 30311 


TUES 3/5 11A-3PM             FRI 3/8 9A-1PM 


 







PROCLAMATION 


 


In recognition and Support of the American Cancer Society Cancer Prevention 
Study- 3 


 


WHEREAS, The American Cancer Society’s Cancer Prevention Study-3 is recruiting men and women across the 
United States to help better understand the genetic, environmental, and lifestyle factors that cause 
or prevent cancer; and 


 


WHEREAS, This year more than 40,400 new cancer cases will be diagnosed and nearly 1,600 cancer deaths 
will occur in Georgia; and 


 


WHEREAS, Early detection of cancer is known to reduce mortality rates; and 


 


WHEREAS, Two-thirds of cancer are preventable with basic lifestyle changes; and 


 


WHEREAS, Physical activity, eating habits, avoidance of tobacco products, protection from ultraviolet radiation, 
and regular cancer screenings are shown to reduce the risk of getting cancer, prevent it, or find it 
early when it is most treatable; and  


 


WHEREAS, Investment and participation in lifesaving cancer research can save lives; and 


 


WHEREAS, The American Cancer Society is bringing CPS-3 to the Fayette County community as an opportunity 
to participate in a historic national research project; and 


 


WHEREAS, Enrollment in CPS-3 by members of the Fayette community will provide increased cancer 
knowledge and awareness; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County is uniting with the American Cancer Society to enroll participants in Cancer 
Prevention Study-3 during the days of March 7 and March 12; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County, Georgia is known as a caring community who supports Relay for Life Events, which 
raise money each year to help fund research such as this, as well as education, advocacy, and 
patient services right here in Fayette County;  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS proclaim the days of March 7 and 
March 12 as “CANCER PREVENTION DAYS”, and by doing so we encourage Fayette’s citizens to evaluate lifestyle 
choices known to cause cancer, to take necessary steps to detect cancer early, and to participate in the Cancer 
Prevention Study-3 by enrolling in the study at Summit Family YMCA in Newnan, Georgia. 


 


 So Proclaimed this 28th day of February 2013 


 


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


        ______________________________ 


                 Steve Brown, Chairman  





		Commissioners- American Cance...ation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- American Cancer Society Proclamation Backup

		1- Proclamation.flyer.general

		2- Dates.and.Locations.Flier

		3- Commissioners- American Cancer Society Proclamation Backup








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-04 supporting State Ethics Reform.


Chairman Brown has introduced Resolution 2013-04 concerning the current efforts on State Ethics Reform in the Georgia General 


Assembly for the Board's consideration.


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-04 supporting State Ethics Reform.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, February 28, 2013







County of Fayette; 
State of Georgia 
 


RESOLUTION  2013-04 
 


A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF STATE ETHICS REFORM 
 
WHEREAS,  The citizens of Fayette County, both Republican and Democrat have asked for meaningful State ethics 


reform legislation; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Reasonable limits should be placed on all gifts from lobbyists to public officers in Georgia, and would 


include such limits and public disclosure on the public officer’s staff, as well as family members; and 
 
WHEREAS,  A total of 136 candidates for Georgia’s General Assembly from both political parties made the pledge to 


co-sponsor legislation that will read “It shall be unlawful for a lobbyist to make a gift to a public officer 
where the value of the gift is more than $100.00,” but HB 142 allows for unlimited spending when 
lobbyists provide gifts to groups of public officers like an entire county commission, city council, boards of 
education and even subcommittees of the General Assembly as well as unlimited spending on travel 
related to the undefined term “official duties;” and 


 
WHEREAS,  In the July 2012 primary elections, 1,251,601 Georgians voted in favor of limiting such gifts in a non-


binding ballot question;  specifically, a $100 cap was supported by 87.21% of Republican voters, while 
72.55% of Democratic voters supported a similarly worded ballot question with an unspecified limit; and 


 
WHEREAS,  Current Georgia law includes all elected officials at the state and local level in the definition of public 


officers, but in no way should local elected officials be treated as lobbyists when representing their 
constituencies in front of the legislature; and 


 
WHEREAS,  The definition of “family members” in Georgia law should extend logically beyond just spouses and 


children; and 
          


WHEREAS,  The Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission (hereafter “Commission”) 
was stripped of its rulemaking authority in 2010 by the legislature, lacking the ability to enforce or 
address situations that are not specifically described by law; meaning if a candidate is not able to file 
disclosure reports by an established deadline as a result of a system failure by the Commission’s 
website, the Commission must still fine the candidates as written in law; and 


 
WHEREAS,  The Commission, the only state agency with oversight authority over legislators, must have a source of 


independent, dedicated funding; preventing the legislature from reducing the Commission’s budget out of 
political retaliation; and 


 
WHEREAS,  Legislators should disclose campaign contributions received between January 1 and the start of the 


legislative session each year; disclosing large sums of campaign contributions from special interest 
groups or individuals made before the session begins;  
 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County does hereby formally request sound 
State ethics reform, reflecting the desires of Georgia’s citizens with full accountability and without the possibility of defunding 
or retaliating against the Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission. 
            
 So resolved this 28th day of February 2013, by the 
 
     
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
Attest:       _____________________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Commissioners- Ethics Reform Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Ethics Reform Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition 1225-12, Gregory H. Moody, Jr. and Brenda K. Moody, Owners, and Lynette M. Bowles, Agent, request to 


rezone 2.49 acres from A-R:  Agricultural-Residential to A-R (LNS):  Agricultural-Residential (Legal Nonconforming Status) to bring said 


property into zoning compliance.  This property is located at 250 Rising Star Road and also fronts on Old Greenville Road.


Staff recommends approval of Petition 124-12 to rezone 2.49 acres from A-R:  Agricultural - Residential to A-R (LNS):  Agricultural-


Residential (Legal Nonconforming Status), with two recommended conditions. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 4-0-1 for approval of Petition 1225-12, with two recommended conditions. 


 


The recommended conditions are: 


 


1)  The owner/developer shall donate at no cost to the County, via a quit claim deed, 10 feet of right-of-way along Rising Star Road and 


30 feet of right-of-way from the centerline of Old Greenville Road prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plan and said dedication 


area shall be shown on the Minor Subdivision Plat.  (Per Public Works, this condition is to ensure the provision of right-of-way for future 


road improvements.) 


 


2)  The existing detached garage encroaching 31 feet into the 50 foot side yard setback will need a variance by the Zoning Board of 


Appeals to remain in the setback prior to submittal of the Minor Subdivision Plat.


Consideration of Petition 1225-12, Gregory H. Moody, Jr. and Brenda K. Moody, Owners, and Lynette M. Bowles, Agent, request to 


rezone 2.49 acres from A-R:  Agricultural-Residential to A-R (LNS):  Agricultural-Residential (Legal Nonconforming Status) to bring said 


property into zoning compliance, with said property being located at 250 Rising Star Road and fronting on Old Greenville Road, with two 


conditions as recommended by staff and the Planning Commission.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, January 24, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This request was tabled by the Board of Commissioners during the January 24, 2013 Commission meeting to allow for legal review and 


opinion.


Public HearingThursday, February 28, 2013

































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1225-12 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1225-12 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1225-12 Agenda Request Fiile

		Planning and Zoning-Petition 1225-12 Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1226-13, Pauline D. Boyd, Owner, and James Babb, Agent, request to rezone property from A-R: 


Agriculture-Residential to R-70: Single-Family Residential District to develop one (1) single-family dwelling lot.  This property consists of 


2.17 acres located in Land Lot 19 of the 9th District and fronts on Barsi Point.


Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1226-13 with one condition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1226-13 with one condition.  


 


The recommended condition is: 


 


The owner/developer shall dedicate, at no cost to Fayette County, via quit claim deed, thirty (30) feet of right-of-way as measured from 


the centerline of Barsi Point prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the Minor 


Subdivision Plat. (This condition is to ensure the provision of adequate right-of-way for future road improvements.)


Approve Petition No. 1226-13, Pauline D. Boyd, Owner, and James Babb, Agent, request to rezone property from A-R: Agriculture-


Residential to R-70: Single-Family Residential District to develop one (1) single-family dwelling lot, with said property consisting of 2.17 


acres located in Land Lot 19 of the 9th District and fronting on Barsi Point, with one condition as recommended by staff and the Planning 


Commission.


Not Applicable


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, February 28, 2013













































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1226-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1226-13 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1227-13, D. Michael Travis and Linda H. Travis Owners, and Alvin Williams, Agent, request to rezone 


property from R-40: Single-Family Residential District to G-B: General Business to develop a Movie and TV Production Studio.  This 


property consists of 24.03 acres located in Land Lot 198 of the 13th District and fronts on S.R 138.


Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1227-13 with one condition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1227-13 with one condition.  


 


The recommended condition is: 


 


That the owner/developer connects the development to the Fayette County Water System for fire protection as required by the Fire 


Marshal.


Approve Petition No. 1227-13, D. Michael Travis and Linda H. Travis Owners, and Alvin Williams, Agent, request to rezone property from 


R-40: Single-Family Residential District to G-B: General Business to develop a Movie and TV Production Studio, with said property 


consisting of 24.03 acres located in Land Lot 198 of the 13th District and fronting on S.R. 138, with one condition as recommended by 


staff and the Planning Commission.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, February 28, 2013

































































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1227-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1227-13 Backup







